
AGENDA 

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WARRENTON  

REGULAR MEETING 

January 11, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

Warrenton City Commission Chambers – 225 South Main Avenue 

Warrenton, OR 97146 

Public Meetings will be conducted in the Commission Chambers with a limited seating 

arrangement. To adhere to social distancing recommendations, meetings will now also be audio 

and video live streamed. Go to https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/administration/page/live-stream-

public-meetings for connection instructions. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

* ELECTION OF MAYOR PRO TEM 2022

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. City Commission Meeting Minutes – 12.14.21

B. System Development Charges Annual Report – FYE June 30, 2021

C. Parks Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – 10.11.21

D. Parks Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – 11.08.21

E. Library Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – 9.08.21

F. Monthly Finance Report – November 2021

     Items on the Consent Calendar have previously been discussed and/or are considered routine.       

     Approval of the Consent Calendar requires a motion, a second, and no discussion, unless   

     requested by a member of the City Commission. 

4. COMMISSIONER REPORTS

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, anyone wishing to address the City Commission concerning items of interest

may do so. The person addressing the Commission must complete a Public Comment Card

and submit it to the City Recorder prior to the meeting. All remarks will be addressed to the

whole City Commission and limited to 3 minutes per person. Public Comments may also be

Additional items 
added at meeting

https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/administration/page/live-stream-public-meetings
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/administration/page/live-stream-public-meetings


 

 

 

submitted by email to the City Recorder, at cityrecorder@ci.warrenton.or.us, no later than 

5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. The Commission reserves the right to delay any action, if 

required, until such time as they are fully informed on a matter.  

 

6.     PUBLIC HEARINGS – None  

 

7.     BUSINESS ITEMS  

 

A. Consideration of Audit Report FYE June 30, 2021 

 

B. Consideration of Resolutions – Authorizing Advisory Board Appointments and 

Setting Terms of Office 

 

8.     DISCUSSION ITEMS – None  

 

9.     GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

10.   EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

11.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 
Warrenton City Hall is accessible to the disabled.  An interpreter for the hearing impaired may be requested 

under the terms of ORS 192.630 by contacting Dawne Shaw, City Recorder, at 503-861-0823 at least 48 hours 

in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided.  

mailto:cityrecorder@ci.warrenton.or.us
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MINUTES

Warrenton City Commission 

December 14, 2021 

6:00 p.m. 

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers 

225 S. Main  

Warrenton, OR 97146 

Mayor Balensifer called the meeting to order at 6:00  p.m. and led the public in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

Commissioners Present: Mayor Henry Balensifer, Mark Baldwin, Tom Dyer, Gerald Poe, and 

Rick Newton 

Staff Present: City Manager Linda Engbretson, City Attorney Spencer Parsons, Public Works 

Director Collin Stelzig, Public Works Operations Manager Kyle Sharpsteen, Police Chief 

Mathew Workman, Planning Director Scott Hazelton, Building Official Van Wilfinger, and City 

Recorder Dawne Shaw  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. City Commission Meeting Minutes – 11.23.21

B. City Commission Work Session Minutes – 11.23.21

C. Monthly Finance Report – October 2021

D. Marina Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – 9.20.21

Commissioner Dyer made the motion to approve the consent calendar as presented. Motion 

was seconded and passed unanimously.  

Newton – aye; Dyer – aye; Poe – aye; Baldwin – aye; Balensifer – aye 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS – None  

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Mayor Balensifer noted item 6.A has been stricken. Planning Director Scott Hazelton explained 

that the appeal was pulled because a temporary fix was accepted by staff.  

Mayor Balensifer asked Commissioner Newton to step down from the dais for the hearing. 

Mayor Balensifer opened the public hearing in the matter of an appeal of the Planning 

Commission’s decision on a Development Code violation by Rick Newton for property at 115 

SW 1st Street. Formalities followed. No conflicts of interest were declared. Ex Parte contacts: 

Commissioner Dyer noted the subject came up during a conversation with Mr. Newton, then the 
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conversation was stopped. Commissioner Poe also noted brief contact by Mr. Newton about an 

article in the newspaper. Mayor Balensifer noted he had brief contact regarding the matter with 

Mr. Newton in a facilitated meeting with City Manager Linda Engbretson; the subject of the 

meeting was not the appeal hearing. All Commissioners noted they had driven by or visited the 

site. All Commissioners stated they feel they can make a fair and impartial decision. Ms. 

Engbretson requested input from legal counsel. City Attorney Spencer Parsons gave a brief 

procedural overview of the issue and the steps the Commission may take. Mr. Hazelton reviewed 

his staff report. He noted he is looking for direction on how to address the impacts on the 

adjacent landowners. Staff is recommending abatement within 72 hours. Mayor Balensifer 

clarified some points with Mr. Hazelton. Mr. Hazelton discussed recommended options. Mr. 

Parsons noted that City abatement would require the property owner’s consent. Public Works 

Director Collin Stelzig noted staff could perform the abatement work. He noted the current 

temporary fix is unsatisfactory. 

 

Mr. Newton and Patty Cardinaletti spoke in response. He noted how much water he has pumped 

off the property. He feels the City is at fault for a lot of the flooding. He explained difficulty 

retaining an engineer. He noted he was given bad direction from staff and noted lack of 

knowledge about permits. Ms. Cardinaletti stated she intended to build on the property. She 

noted Big River reached out to them about placing fill from the street. She voiced her frustration 

on working with the City. They are trying to address the issue. Mr. Newton continued. He stated 

he does not care what the Commission’s decision is. Ms. Cardinaletti expressed confusion about 

the stop work orders and hearing notice. Mr. Newton noted water was bubbling up through the 

concrete to reach the drain. 

 

Mayor Balensifer asked Mr. Newton if he is challenging that a violation took place. Mr. Newton 

confirmed and noted he is unsure of the amount of fill on the property  

 

Mayor Balensifer asked for public comments in support of the appeal. David Manion, adjacent 

property owner, noted he submitted a letter to the City. He discussed a water problem on their 

street from the amount of fill and the sidewalk. He stated water won’t drain to the east and noted 

trees falling over. He offered a suggestion to fix the issue as outlined in his letter. 

 

Russell Cox, adjacent property owner, noted he is experiencing flooding. He noted photos and 

reviewed a letter he submitted to the City. He noted concern about Mr. Newton approaching him 

at work. He feels he is being harassed. Mr. Newton also called him making demands. Mr. Cox 

discussed newspaper articles. He does not want to be involved in this battle. He wants his fence 

repaired and the water gone. He will have to bring fill in for his backyard.  

 

Robert Burns, resident of Alder Avenue, stated he never received any notification from the City 

about the street improvement project. He discussed issues with curbing, noting it was difficult to 

get cooperation from the City. He is concerned and wants the City to notify all residents of what 

is happening on the street. He stated he thought the fill was a win-win for Big River and the City. 

He noted Big River stated they could have put in drains with City permission.  

 

Mayor Balensifer asked for public comments in opposition of the appeal; there were none.  
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Mr. Newton offered rebuttal. He discussed the ditch and the rights-of-way. He also noted Big 

River could have put in a drain if they received a response from the City.  

 

Mayor Balensifer asked staff for rebuttal. Ms. Engbretson explained her understanding of the 

initial outreach. She disagrees with Mr. Newton’s comment that the Building Official lied to 

him. She noted it was the understanding that the fill would be 250 cubic yards of gravel.  

 

Commissioner Dyer asked Mr. Stelzig if there is a drain at the NE corner of Mr. Newton’s lot. 

Mr. Stelzig confirmed. Commissioner Baldwin asked if the additional drainage pipe was 

included in the original scope of work. Mr. Stelzig stated it was not. Mr. Hazelton stated the staff 

report was factual and true.  

 

Mr. Parsons spoke to potential liability claim of water issues. He stated it is not what is under 

consideration at this time. He also stated the liability does not pass from the property owner to 

the City based on information received at the counter and reiterated liability is not being 

consideration at this time.    

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Balensifer closed the public hearing. He noted that the 

Commission has been looking at drainage and fill issues for years. He noted that the type of fill 

is not allowable and the amount of fill is in excess. He feels illegal fill has occurred. Discussion 

followed about options to move forward. Mr. Stelzig stated the January 4th date for the storm 

water report would still be required.  

 

Mayor Balensifer reopened the hearing and asked the defendant if he would accept a City fix 

through Public Works and the associated cost. Mr. Newton stated he would need the cost before 

making a decision. Mayor Balensifer closed the public hearing.  

 

Mr. Parsons noted a point of order that they need to allow opportunity for testimony since the 

hearing was reopened. Mayor Balensifer reopened the hearing. Ryan Lampi of Big River stated 

everyone met on site on November 18. He discussed his understanding was they had a verbal 

agreement to the fix. He stated he wants to remain neutral. Mr. Newton stated that the proposed 

solution was only a temporary fix, and another fix would be needed. He asked for clarification. 

Ms. Engbretson confirmed the meeting took place and the temporary fix was not agreed to by the 

City. Mr. Stelzig confirmed Mr. Lampi was correct and asked for calculations and a plan to 

move forward. He noted that it could be a permanent fix. The City is still waiting for 

calculations. Mr. Parsons explained a “temporary fix” in terms of land use planning and 

development. Mayor Balensifer closed the public hearing. Mayor Balensifer outlined options. 

Discussion followed.  

 

Commissioner Baldwin made the motion to reduce the grace period from January 4, 2022, 

to December 17, 2021, 7:30 p.m., due to the impacts on adjacent landowners. And if the 

situation has not been remedied by such time, that fines in the amount of $500 a day will 

begin accruing. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously. 
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Dyer – aye; Poe – aye; Baldwin – aye; Balensifer – aye 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS  

 

Mayor Balensifer nominated Amanda Donovan for the Warrenton Community Library Board. 

City Recorder Dawne Shaw noted remaining vacancies on the Community Center Advisory 

Board and the Marinas Advisory Board.  

 

Commissioner Dyer made the motion to appoint Amanda Donovan to Position 6 on the 

Warrenton Community Library Board. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously. 

 

Newton – aye; Dyer – aye; Poe – aye; Baldwin – aye; Balensifer – aye 

 

Mayor Balensifer noted consideration of cancelling the second meeting in December. 

 

Commissioner Baldwin made the motion to cancel the December 28th Commission 

meeting. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously. 

 

Newton – aye; Dyer – aye; Poe – aye; Baldwin – aye; Balensifer – aye 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS – None  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER  

 

Commissioner Newton asked if a person can serve both the Friends of the Warrenton 

Community Library and the Warrenton Community Library Board. Discussion followed. Mr. 

Parsons offered clarification that it would depend upon the organizational documents, but the 

Commission has the authority to make an appointment pending resignation on another 

conflicting body. Commissioner Newton discussed increased business licenses being a sign of a 

healthy economy. He noted Building Inspector Christian Jensen has been great to work with. He 

noted other updates.  

 

Commissioner Baldwin noted his thoughts about the land use issue on Alder Avenue. He 

apologized to staff for comments that have been made. He asked for Commissioner Newton to 

step down and explained his reasoning.  

 

Commissioner Poe noted his thoughts about Commissioner Newton’s actions over the past few 

months. He also noted no confidence in Commissioner Newton and asked him to step down.  

 

Mayor Balensifer and Commissioner Dyer asked about trimming trees by Oregon Bioproducts. 

Mr. Stelzig gave a brief update. 

 

Mayor Balensifer asked for clarification about camping in the Marinas Advisory Committee 

minutes. Ms. Engbretson clarified. He noted a meeting last week with Commissioner Newton 

and Ms. Engbretson to discuss differences. He discussed his concerns about Commissioner 
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Newton’s behavior. He feels Commissioner Newton should deal with his issues out of the public 

domain and joined Commissioners Baldwin and Poe in asking him to step aside.  

 

Ms. Engbretson discussed a report from Police Chief Mathew Workman on a homeless camp 

cleanup behind Bogh Electric. She acknowledged the Police and Public Works departments for 

their great work together. 

 

There being no further business, Mayor Balensifer adjourned the regular meeting at 7:12 p.m.  

 

Respectfully prepared and submitted by Rebecca Sprengeler, Deputy City Recorder. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

___________________________ 

ATTEST:      Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor  

 

_______________________________ 

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder  
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Clly of Worrenton, Oreyon

Warrenton"^

SYSTlifVl DliVI:1.01>MI:NT Cll AttG 1: S ANN U A I. ill: P 0 R

This report fulfills the requirements/ laid out in Oregon State Statutes, ORS,223.311/ providing for an annual

accounting (report)^ to be completed by January 1 of each year, for system development charges showing the

total amount of system development charge revenues collected for each system and the projects that were

funded In the previous fiscal year.

The local government shall Include In the annual accounting (a) a list of the amount spent on each project

funded/ hi whole or in par?/ with system development charge revenues; and (b) the amount of revenue

collected by the local government from system development charges and attributed to the costs of complying

with the provisions of ORS 223.297 to 223.314.

The annual accounting Is on page 2.

SDC Annual Report, June 30, 2021 Page 1



^ City of Warrenton, Oregon
>

System Development Charges
Annual Accounting

For the fiscal year &ndcd June 30, 2021

Parks Water Sewer Storm Sewer Streets

Reimbursement Improvement Reimbursement Improvement Reimbursement Improvement Reimbursement Improvement Reimbursement Improvement^

Revenue

System Development Charges 13/148 120,044 59,022 26,093 155,169

Interest Earned 1/380 972 685 574 8,250

Total Revenue - 14,528 121,016 - 59707 - - 26/667 _^ __ 163/419

Uses

Debt Service OEDD-G99001 58,000

Debt Service DEQ R94942

Debt Serv;c& OECDD Y04001

SE 4th & Main Stormwcrter Pump Station

Total Uses

Beginning Rjnd Balance

Net Change

Ending Fund Balance

165/905
14,528

180,433

58,000

91/795
63/016

154,811

53,187
59^07

112,894

57,302
26,667

83,969

909/268
163,4^9

1,072,687



MINUTES
Warrenton Parks Advisory Board

October 11th, 2021

Warrenton City Hall ~ Commission Chambers

225 S. Main

Warrenton, OR 97146

Parks Board Members Present: Chairperson Sara Long, Ron Dyer, Carol Snell, Brooke

Terry, Vice Chair Bert Little.

Staff Present: Hailie Homolac; Public Works Executive Secretary, Ky!e Sharpsteen;

Public works Operations Manager

CONSENT CALANDAR

A. Minutes of June 14th Meeting

Vice Chair Bert Little made the motion to approve the minutes of the June 14th meeting

minutes. Board member Ron Dyer seconded the motion, and al! board members were in

favor.

B. Chair Elections

Ms. Snell nominated Chairperson Long to remain in her position, Ms. Long accepted, Mr.

Dyer seconded the motion, and aif board members were in favor. Mr. Dyer nominated

Vice Chair litt!e to remain in his position, Mr. Little accepted, Ms. Snell seconded the

motion, and ail board members were in favor.

REPORTS

Warrenton Kids Inc. - Debbie Little reported to the board that Warrenton Kids Inc starts

back up in January with sports enrollment. The board discussed that a field use

agreement should be in place before January and should take priority at the next

November meeting. Vice Chair Little also brought attention to the board that there should

be an agreement for VFW's use of the concession stands.

Northwest Coast Trails Coalition ~ Tessa ScheHer reported to the board that the
Northwest Coast Trails Coalition will cease their organized public service and close its

doors. Tessa noted that the trails group and predecessor, Warrenton Trails Association.

have been instrumental in the advocacy, planning, and building of trails throughout the
region for decades. They were able to assist with planning and writing the 2008 Master

Trails Pian for Warrenton and then leverage public and private funds to build most of the

Waterfront Trail. Significant segments of that Waterfront Trail now await further action on
the Citys part including the long planned and promised connection to Ft Stevens State

Park at Seafarers Park. She notes that trail usage has increased 200% nationally as
people find hiking to be the number one outdoor family activity.

3.C



MINUTES
Warrenton Parks Advisory Board

October 11th, 2021

Warrenton City Hal!-Commission Chambers

225 S. Main

Warrenton. OR 97146

BUSINESS ITEMS

Chairperson Long would like to move forward with a cornhole tournament next may and

is seeking the boards approval to move forward with planning the event and money that
is raised will be used at the discretion of the board. Vice Chair Little made the motion to

approve plans to move forward with the cornhole tournament and all board members were
in favor.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Terry Arnall presented to the board a few issues with the ramp at the kayak dock. The

current ramp is very steep, and you must lift your kayak over the rail to get over the dock

which is a hazard and near impossible for one person. Terry referenced an EZ Port Max

which is what the City of Seaside uses as their kayak launch to make it ADA accessible.

Mr. Little noted that the debris amount we get in the Skipanon is much greater than what

seaside get and that might become an issue.

Discussion moved to the Library of Things. Chairperson Long got in touch with the

Warrenton Library about renting park equipment and they are seeking donations for

various play equipment for the public to rent.

Vice Chair Little brought attention to the board that he would like to see the parks board

ask the city for a tax base, Chairperson long deferred this discussion until the December

meeting.

There being no further business, Chairperson Long adjourned the meeting at 5:30 p.m.

Next regular meeting is scheduled for December 13th, 2021, at 4:00 p.m.

Approved



MINUTES
Warrenton Parks Advisory Board

October 11th, 2021

Warrenton City Hal! - Commission Chambers

225 S. Main

Warrenton, OR 97146

Attest

-4w^ '^wtv^j

Hal!ie Homolac, Secretary



MINUTES - SPECIAL BUDGET MEETING
Warrenton Parks Advisory Board

November 8th, 2021

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers

225 S. Main

Warrenton, OR 97146

Parks Board Members Present: Chairperson Sara Long, Ron Dyer, Carol Snell, Vice

Chair Bert Little. Excused: Brooke Terry.

Staff Present: Hallie Homolac; Public Works Executive Secretary, Kyle Sharpsteen;

Public Works Operations Manager, Scott Hazelton; Community Development Director.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Mark Simonsen requested a brief discussion at the budget meeting to address his

complaint on the use of the baseba!! and softball fields at the City Park. His chief complaint

IsWarrenton Kids Inc. controlling the fields and allotment of who, when and where, stating

that 4 baseball teams take up the use of two fields and 11 softball teams use the other

two fields. Chairperson Long reiterated from our joint meeting in August that we have

been directed by the City Commission to reserve the two ballfie!ds for hardball and the

other two ballfields for softball as much as possible. Board member Dyer suggested

coordinating with the high school for the use of their fields. The board decided to postpone

further discussion until the field use agreement has been completed.

Discussion on park projects continued. Mr. Dyer proposed to the board that there be a
10-12-foot-wide walking trail around the new Warrenton Middle School. Mr. Sharpsteen

reiterated from last year's budget meeting that the board had decided to hold off on capital

improvement projects and focus on the top priority projects and completing smaller

projects. Chairperson Long suggested that the board votes on focusing on smaller and
more affordable projects such as the triangle park sign for this year's budget.

Vice-Chair Little questioned whether the forest rim park was stiil the top priority. The board

hadn't heard any updates on the subject and there hadn't been a committee formed in

Forest Rim for maintaining the park. Chairperson Long will find out from the mayor where

things have left off.

Chairperson Long mentioned that the mayor wi!! be at the next meeting to present the

metal sign for the historical Hammond district to the board.

The board turned the discussion to what projects they prefer to get done in the next five

years. Mr. Dyer mentioned that he would love to see a ballpark at the Fort Stevens Parade

Ground in Hammond. The board unanimously decided to focus on smaller projects and

maintenance and to let the capital improvement funds roll into next year.

3.D



MINUTES ~ SPECIAL BUDGET MEETING
Warrenton Parks Advisory Board

November 8th, 2021

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers

225 S. Main

Warrenton, OR 97146

There being no further business, Chairperson Long adjourned the meeting at 5:30 p.m,

Next regular meeting is scheduled for December 13th, 2021 , at 4:00 p.m.

Approved

Attest

Haflie Homolac, Secretary



Minutes

Warrenton Community Library Board
Regular Meeting

September 8, 2021 - 5:30 p.m.
Warrenton City Commission Chambers 

225 South Main Ave., Warrenton, OR 97146

1. Call to order: Kelsey called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.

2. Roll call: Kelsey Balensifer, Karyn Grass (attending through Zoom), Dawn DeLacey,
Natalie Duggan, Eileen Purcell (attending through Zoom), and Library Director Kelly
Knudsen. Unable to attend: Joy Wheatley-Decius. Danika Cooley resigned.

3. Recognition of guests: none attending

4. Consent calendar:
A. Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 06.11.21: There were a couple changes to the
notes. Dawn motioned to approve. Natalie seconded and all moved to approve the
amended minutes.

5. Site manager report:
• Saturn’s hours were increased from 18 to 25 weekly beginning in July. The

computers have been updated, there is a new color printer. We are still awaiting
painting of the building to begin.

• Carole is retiring in October and Kelly would like to see that position increase to
40 hours per week. The position will be advertised on the city website starting in
October. She plans to rearranged the back room to make more meeting space.
There are now 9 active volunteers. Karyn asked if there was some way to
commemorate Carole’s retirement on 10/16/2021.

• Tech Tuesdays are beginning soon-workshops to help seniors with their devices
and other media. Kelly will be teaching a six-week class at Helping Hands. Kelly
will also attend a conference in Reno.

• Saturn is running a virtual Tween Teen club and a popular anime club. The
Summer Reading program had robust attendance and author visits have and will
continue to occur. Karyn complimented the library staff on its Facebook page and
the friendly atmosphere in the library.

6. Discussion items:

A. Karyn would like to pursue writing some grants, but we are waiting for the
Friends group to finish 501c3 paperwork. Monthly Friends meetings will resume

3.E



again in September. The group needs a leader to take charge of guiding the 
incorporation paperwork to completion.

B. There is an open spot on the board as Danika Cooley resigned recently. We are 
a seven-person board.

C. The final version of the WCL Policy manual is almost complete. Kelly will send to 
all of us to make any edits we think are necessary by October 10 so she can 
submit it to the commissioners soon.

D. We wondered of there were awkward moments over required masking, but Kelly 
said no. There has been a reduction in the number of visitors daily, perhaps due 
to the rise in COVID cases and the reinstated mask mandate- down to an 
average of 31 per day from 48-50 a few months ago.

7. Public comment: There was no public comment.

8. Good of the order: Our next meeting in December 8, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. The

9. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 6:11 p.m.

Meeting Minutes were taken and recorded by Eileen Purcell, Board Secretary.
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CITY OF WARRENTON
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

[ Volume 15, Issue 5 Monthly Finance Report
November 2021

January 11, 2022 ]
•

•

•

Economic Indicators

Interest Rates:

LGIP:

Prime Rate:

CPI-U change:

Current

.45%

3.25%

6.8%

Unemployment Rates:

Clatsop County:

Oregon:

u.s.:

4.8%

4.2%

4.2%

1 year ago

.75%

3.25%

1.2%

7.1%

6.6%

6.7%

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Department Statistics

Utility Bills mailed 3,371

New Service Connections 8

Reminder Letters 448

Door Hangers 91

Water Service Discontinued 14

Counter payments 374

Mail payments 1,079

Auto Pay Customers/pmts 714

Online (Web) payments 1,082

Checks issued 323

Current and Pending Projects

• Audit Report for FYE 6/30/21 (to be
presented 1/11/22)

• ARPA Funding (first report due April
30,2022)

4 Urban Renewal Annual Report
(published before March 1, 2022)

• Budget Preparation has begun

Financial Narrative as of November 30,2021

Note: Revenues and expenses should
! track at 5/12 or 41.7% of the budget.

General Fund: Year to date revenues
amount to $2,538,761, which is 55.6% of
the budget, compared to the prior year
amount of $1,821,342, which was 41.2% of
the budget and are up by $717,419 (mostly
due to timing of property tax receipts). In-

I creases are shown in current property tax,
I city franchise fees, transient room taxes,
\ municipal court, planning fees, police
I charges, fire charges, park charges, mis-
\ cellaneous, interest and leases and are
'. offset by decreases in prior year property
i tax, franchise fees and state revenue shar-

I ing.

1 Expenses year to date amount to
: $1,796,418, which is 35.2% of the budget,
; compared to Ihe prior year amount of
I $1,544,504, which was 32.8% of the budg-
1 et. All departments are tracking at or under
; budget with the exception ofAdmin/
I Commission/Finance which has one-time
expenses due at Ihe first of the fiscal year.

i WBL: Business license revenue amounts
to $59,300, compared to $56,850 at this
time last year, a difference of $2,450. Year
to date licenses issued is 670 compared to
635 at this time last year.

Building Department: Permit revenues
this month amount to $6,568 and $86,921
year to date, which is 26.6% of the budget-
ed amount. Last year to date permit reve-
nue was $135,802, 28.9% of the budget.

I State Tax Street: State gas taxes re-
ceived this month amount to $36,395 fuel
sold in October and $145,089 year to
date. City fuels taxes received this
month amount to $31,091 for fuel sold in
September and are $101 ,564 year to
date. Total gas taxes received year to
date are $246,653 compared to
$219,671 at this time last year.

Warrenton Marina: Total revenues to
date are $577,260, 91% of the budgeted
amount, compared to the prior year
amount of $481,766, which was 84.3% of
the budgeted amount. There is $28,951
in moorage receivables outstanding.

i
I Hammond Marina: Total revenues to
date are $400,664,114% of the budget"
ed amount, compared to the prior year
amount of $302,938, which was 129.8%
of the budgeted amount. There is $4,255 |
in moorage receivables outstanding.

Of the total outstanding receivables:

$14,924 (44.9%) is current,

$1,182 (3.6%) is 30-60 days past due,

$946 (2.9%) is 60-90 days past due and

$16,154 (48.6%) is over 90 days past
due.

Water Fund: Utility fees charged this
month are $169,788 and $86,252, and
$1,204,125 and $820,360 year to date
for in-city and out-city respectively and
totals $2.024,485 and is 53.1% of the

budget. Last year at this lime, year to date
fees were $1,213,135 and $805,200, for in-
city and out-dty, respectively and totaled
$2,018,335.

On page 5, water revenue history is shown
for each fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 .
The green is in-city, the gray is out-city, and
the grand total is shown in orange. Also
shown, segregated from the in-city and out-
city category is the top 5 users of the sys-
tem each year and then the 5 months of the
current year.

Sewer Fund: Utility fees charged this
month are $209,239 and $1,100,558 year to
date, which is 45% of the budget. Last year
at this time, year to date fees were
$1,044,579. Shoreline Sanitary fees year to
date are $56,449. Total revenues year to
date are $1,185,185 compared to
$1,242,057 at this time last year.

Page 5 shows the same revenue history for
the sewer revenue as previously mentioned
for water.

Storm Sewer: Utility fees (20% of sewer
fees) this month are $41,932 and $220,110
year to date and is 45% of the budget. Last
year to date revenues were $208,810 which
was 48.7% of the budget.

Sanitation Fund: Service fees charged this
month for garbage and recycling were
$82.542 and $17,635, and $437,044 and
$87,995, year to date, and are 45.7% and
43.1% of the budget respectively.
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City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of November, 2021
I

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures

Municipal Court
Admin/Comm/FinfACF)
Planning
Police
Fire
Parks
Transfers
Total Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Current

Month
1,238,755

1,267,436

8,918
79,625
13,972

131,677
53,036

9,230

296,458

2,209,733

Current
Month

83,054

350

1,557

81,847

Current
Month

2,441,498

68,486

33,647

2,476,337

General
Year

to Date

1,467,390

2,538.761

64,678
530,111

78,606
759,194
310,505

53,324

1,796,418

2,209,733

Fund

Budget
875.000

4,569,509

187,431
1,223,114

287,914
2,098,395

944,476
186,654
170,778

5,098,762

345,747

WBL
Year

to Date
53,439

59,462

31,054

81,847

Budget
40,000

59,500

77,091

22,409

State Tax Street
Year

to Date
2,608.279

333,015

464,957

2,476,337

Budget
1,900,000

1,380,063

2,983,459

296,604

% of
Budget

167.70

55.56

34.51
43.34
27.30
36.18
32.88
28.57

35.23

639.12

% of
Budget

133.60

99.94

40.28

365.24

!

% of
Budget

137.28

24.13

15.58

834.90

(see details of revenue, page 4)

I

Current
Month
786,347

6,872

25,426

767,793

I

Current
Month
618,540

25,069

39,817

603,792

Building Department
Year

to Date

847,148

89,246

168,601

767,793

Budget
840,000

332.361

491,145

681,216

Warrenton Marina
Year

to Date
266,345

577,260

239,813

603,792

Budget
265,000

634,538

741,644

157,894

% of
Budget

100.85

26.85

34.33

112.71

% of
Budget

100.51

90.97

32.34

382.40



City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of November 2021, continued

Current

458,906

Hammond IVIarina
Year

to Date Budget
Beginning Fund Balance 471,597 239,353

Plus: Revenues 9,619 400,664

Less; Expenditures 22,310 181,111

Ending Fund Balance 458,906

% of
Budget

250,000

351,548

483,652

95.74

113.97

37.45

117,896 389.25

Water Fund
Current
Month

Year
to Date Budget

4,697,671 4.697,671

% of
Budget

4,570,338 3,336,675 2,900,000 115.06

276,523 2,099,935 6,492,447 32.34

149,190 738,939 8,425,702 8.77

),745 485.93

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Current

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Sewer Fund
Year

to Date Budget

Beginning Fund Balance 557,089 450,351

Plus: Revenues 100,430 527,679

Beginning Fund Balance 94,619 162,709

Plus: Revenues 201,084 226,024

168,000

243.503

20,404 113,434

275,299 275,299

% of
Budget

3,469,311 3,110,780 3,000,000 103.69

224.754 1,185,185 2.753,900 43.04

111,204 713.104 4,908,806 14.53

3,582,861

Current
Month

3,582,861 845,094

Sanitation Fund
Year

to Date Budget

423.96

% of
Budget

147,717 468,228 1,331,479 35.17

509,802

Current
Month

509,802

Library
Year

to Date

258,613

Budget

197.13

1

% of
Budget

96.85

92.82

283.477 40.02

128,026 215.03

Storm Sewer

Current Year
to Date Budget

42,486 223,915

Community Center
Current Year
Month to Date Budget

1,480 7,123 24,771

18,853 18,853

% of
Budget

1,472,336 1,473,868 1,300,000 113.37

495,220 45.22

10,622 193,583 1.182,221 16.37

1,504,200 1,504,200 612,999 245.38

% of
Budget

425,000

1,165,092

105.96

45.29

17,081

3,252

16,757

9.219

15,000

16,600

111.71

55.54

28.76

6,829 276.07

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency

Capital Projects Fund
Current Year

to Date Budget
% of

Budget
12.910 13,174 16,220 81.22

25,767 33,995 6,181,812 0.55

25.632 34,124 6,198,032 0.55

13.045 13,045



City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of November 2021, continued
($1 Cash Balances as of November 30,2021

General Fund

W8L
Building Department

State Tax Street

2,491,510
81,727

769,174
2,508,583

Warrenton Marina

Hammond Marina
Water Fund
Sewer Fund

582,420
457,444

4,223,195

3,270,625

Storm Sewer

Sanitation Fund
Community Center

Library

1,455.407
435,153

20,034
277,221

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency
Capital Projects 38,628

DebtSen/ice 3,046,878

General Fund

Revenues

Property taxes-cunrent

Property taxes-prior

County land sales

Franchise fees

COW - franchise fees

Transient room tax

Liquor licenses

State revenue sharing

Municipal court

Planning Fees

Police charges

Fire charges

Park charges

Miscellaneous

Interest

Lease receipts

Grants

Sub-total

Transfers from other funds

Overhead

Total revenues

Collection

Frequency

AP

AP

A

W\Q

M

Q
A

MQ

M

I

I

SM

[

I

M

M

1

I

M

2021-2022

Budget

1,171,282

35,000

598.000

293,269

527,000

500

170,653

127,800

65,500

18,000

106,630

2,000

8,000

222,761

3,346,395

1,223,114

4,569,509

Actual as
a

% of

Current

Budget

96.75

34.12

0.00

29.86

46.73

58.78

0.00

26.79

38.79

34.18

39.73

0.75

0.00

698.95

34.65

42,66

0.00

60.02

0.00

43.34

55.56

Collections/Accruals

Year to date

Nov 2021 Nov 2020

1,133,238

11.942

178,589

137,040

309.767

45,715

49,572

22,391

7,152

800

655

13,979

2,772

95,039

2,008,651 1,

530,110

2,538,761 1,

597,728

17,365

182,450

133,228

238,362

52,593

37,591

19,660

6,279

6,805

2,402

90,269

1,921

,386,653

434,689

,821,342

(over)

under

budget

38,044 |

23,058 |

419,411

156,229 |

217,2331

500]
124,9381

78,228 |

43,109 |

10,848 |

105,830;

(11,979)

5,228

127,722

1,337,744

693,004

2,030,748

S - semi-annual

I - infermittently

MQ - Monthly, cigarette and liquor and Quarterly, revenue sharing

R - renewals due in July and new licenses intermittently

A-annual

M-monthly

Q - quarterly

SM - Semi-annual in November then monthly

AP - As paid by taxpayer beginning in November

W\Q. - Century Link, NW Nat & Charter-quarterly,

all others monthly

Note: Budget columns do not include contingencies as a separate line item but are included in the ending fund balance. Unless the Commission

authorizes the use of contingency, these amounts should roll over to the following year beginning fund balance. For budget details, please refer

to the City of Warrenton Adopted Budget for fiscal year ending June 30,2022, Budget amounts reflect budget adjustments approved by the

Commission during the fiscal year. Information and data presented in this report is unaudited.



City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of November 2021, continued

water fund utility revenues

1
2
3
4
5

in city
out city

pacific coast seafoods
city of gearhart
fort stevens
astoria/seaside koa
bio Oregon
hampton lumber
fred meyer
glenwood village
point adams packing

2012

909,751
681,029

230,083
534,382
40,868

33,293
30,028

2013

874,148
612.810

296,702
264.658
76,354

51,602
37,267

2014

937,525
640,672

125,075
54,324

68,430
40,070
42,701

2015

1,039,783
677,396

178,583
60,915

91,106
39,595

35,960

2016

1,201.543
840,545

38,549
211,396
80,824

72.408
41,336

2017

1,286,658
862.663

201,556
95,380

93,145
54.111

57,728

2018

1,412,585
979,244

238.334
110,956

82,570
64,422

60,046

2019

1,561,460
1,059,070

132.748
241,009
120,497

77.070
70,473

2020

1,699,691 1
1.098,157 1

428.585
223,290

90,241

89,538

80,8021

2021

,799.368
,173,039

428,081
258,985

89.174
85,452
82,279

5 months
2022

806.387
573,826

255,008
246,535
50,792
44,107
47,831

total 2,459,434 2,213,541 1,908,797 2,123,338 2,486,601 2.651,241 2,948,1573,262,3273,710,3043,916,3782,024,4861

I * used (o 6e in the top 5

sewer fund utility revenues

in city
shoreline

fred meyer
2 hampton lumber mill
3 fort stevens state park

Columbia point apis
portwarrencondos

5 alder creek village
1 astoria/seaside koa
4 pacific rim apartments

total gross revenue

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

1.315,666 1,395,820 1,483.459 1,534,362 1,601,310
54,247

20,396 36,998 68,023

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
5 months

2022

1,752,561 1.886.8232,026,663 2,132,580 2,184,948 945,0891
114,454 121,893 130,274 135,780 136.234 56,449 |

39,203 48,810 52,575 48,144 44,576 58,408 68,549 73,680 76.714 80,868 35.156!
38,935
28,420
26,525

44,598
32,551
30,381

46,828
34,178
31.900

47,999
35,035
32,700

37,581

49.199
35,914

39.505
41,628

52,151
38,066
35,529

48,112

54,759
39.967

43,964
44,237

57,497
41,969

46,166
45,564

59,797
43,646

48,011

49,466

59,797

48,011
105,413
49,466

24,915

20,005
54,782
20,611

1.469,145 1,589,158 1,716,963 1,735,821 1,866.379 2.099.281 2,260,1922,421,813 2,545,994 2,664,737 1,157.007!
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Finance Department
Agenda IVIemorandum

To: The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Warrenton City Commission

From: April dark
Finance Director

Date: January 11, 2022

Regarding - Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2021

The financial Statements, for the City ofWarrenton, for the period ending June 30, 2021
are attached.

Our auditor, Paul Nielson, oflsler, CPA will be here this evening to present the financial
statements and the results of the audit.

^ <^A\\^.^~^S^Approved by Ci

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, bt^, ir^st be attached to this memorandum.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Wd^tfdenAvc,

ISiifiuie, OR 97403
Honorable Mayor and City Commission 541.^i2.516]
City of Warrenton, Oregon mw.i^ncpii.coni

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CityofWarrenton, Oregon ("City")
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Warrenton> as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

RSM US AUuncr niL'nlbiT finili acf ?t]ur.iti- ami imlqlL'iulciit busulL-;.~fi. nnd Irjpl inlitie.< tfiat fltc icipnn-illlL1 fi)r thfir U\MI

.ct^ll^^^n><.ion^,»l^d>.rc^^l^nd^n<^cpulJu,lfr<>l,n{S^lUSJ.^.I'.RS^IUSIJJ'^^l,c^ An in depend cnlly o-.vned member
Inttfnati<)H,l],l{;lob.i1 nchvork of iiulcptink-nt audit, t]\, and con'.ultiilj; fiim?. Mmibcti ufKSM L'S Alibnn- ll.n'c accr?; tu r^r"a'a 1 If-' n 11:
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of
pension contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, econoinic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other SnformQtion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements
and other supplemental information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and other supplemental information are the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
fund financial statements and other supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Minimum Standards of Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report
dated December 15, 2021 on our consideration of the City of Warrenton's compliance with certain provisions of
laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative
Ruies. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

Isler CPA

By;

f^uJLft^ TU^^

Paul R Nieison, CPA, a member of the firm

Eugene, Oregon

December 15, 2021



Manaflement's Discussion and AnalysLs

As management of the City of Warrenton, Oregon, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the additional information that we have
furnished in our annual financial report.

Financial Highlights

• The City's total assets and deferred outflows at June 30, 2021 were $69,639,575.

• The City's total liabilities and deferred inflows at June 30, 2021 were $20,006,241.

• The net position of the City at June 30, 2021 was $49,633,334. Of this amount, $11,755,967 represents
unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and

creditors.

• At June 30, 2021, the Cit/s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $9,766,189.

• At the end of the fiscal year, the City's total combined governmental funds had a restricted fund balance of

$7,740,673, a committed fund balance of $75,820, an assigned fund balance of $482,306, and an unassigned
fund balance of $1,467,390.

• The General Fund's unassigned fund balance is $1,467,390 at the end of the current fiscal year, or 35.2% of

General Fund expenditures and transfers out.

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The govern ment-wi de financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the City's assets, liabilities, and deferred
outffows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave). Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities).



The governmental activities of the City include the following:

• General government

• Fire and emergency medical services
• Police

• Planning and development
• Library and culture

• Public works

The business-type activities of the City include the following:

• Water utilities
• Sewer utilities
• Sanitation utilities
• Marinas

The govern me nt-wide financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary
funds.

Governmental funds. Governmentaf funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govern ment-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendabie resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentat funds and governmental activities.

The City of Warrenton maintains individual governmentai funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the remaining
governmental funds (nonmajor governmental funds) are combined into a single aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Warrenton adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for each fund to demonstrate connpliance with the budget. To demonstrate
compliance, budgetary comparison statements for all of the governmental funds have been prepared and can be
found in the basic financial statements and supplemental information as listed in the table of contents.

The basic governmental fund financial statements and respective reconciliations can also be found in the basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.



Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on net
income determination. The City of Warrenfon maintains two types of proprietary funds; enterprise and internal
service funds. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its wafer, sewer and sanitation utiiities, and marinas.
The City uses an internaf service fund to account for engineering sen/ices provided to other departments/funds
within the City. The internal service fund activity is included with the business-type activities on the government"
wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation
utilities, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of Warrenton. The Marina funds are considered
to be nonmajor funds.

The City also adopts an annual appropriated budget for all proprietary funds. To demonstrate compliance with the
budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the enterprise funds as suppfemenfal
information, as listed in the table of contents. The proprietary fund financial statements can also be found in the
basic financial statements as listed in the fable of contents.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a
fult understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
basic financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Required Supplementary Information. Information regarding the City's share of the net pension liability and
pension confribufions can be found in the required supplementary information as fisted in the table of contents.

Gpv^rnment-wide_ Overall FmariciaiAnalvsis

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $49,633,334 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the City's net position, 59.8%, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not availabie for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these fiabifities.

An additional portion of the City's net position, 16.4%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining portion represents 23.7% of total net position, and may be used to meet
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
position, both for the government as a whole and for its separate business-type activities. The governmental
activities category, unrestricted net position, is reported as negative $3,598,120. The negative balance in
unrestricted net position is a result of the City issuing general obligation bonded debt for the Wasfewater
Treatment Facility (an asset in the Sewer Enterprise). The debt reduces unrestricted net position in the
governmental activities column by $2,780,287 while the related capital asset increases net investment in capital
assets for business-type activities. In essence, the general government has taken on debt for the Sewer Utility.



City of Warrenton's Net Position

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net
Total assets

Deferred outflows

Noncurrent liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows

Governmental Activities
2021

$ 10.430,319
1ZOQ5A18,
22,436J3L

1,598,306_

9,424,756
666,885

10,091,641

1_98^64_

2020

$ 9,271,168
12.396,883

..21.668,051_

_ 972,421

8,871,525
604,474

9,475,999

279,292_

Business-type Activities
2021

$18,632,067
25,861,453
44,493,520

_1,11 L612

8,946,642
630,615

_ 9,577,257

J 38,379 _

2020

$15,981,775
26.644,556
42,626,331

_72_4,056_

8,789,254
852A53_

9,641,707_

207^56,

Total
2021

$29,062,386
37.867.271
66,929,65_7

_2J09^1_8._

18,371,398
.L29_L5QQ_

J 9.668,898 _

337.343

2020

$25,252,943
_ 39,0.41,439_

_64,294,382_

1.696,477

17,660,779
1.456.927

_19,11L706,

487,248_

Net position:
Net investment in capital

assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

9,571,536
7,770,422
(3.598, m

9,611,703
7,204,867

(3.931.389)

20,120,723
351,674

_15,354,Q87_

20.21'1,558
202,285

_i_3,08M81_

29,692,259
8,122,096

11.755.967

29,823,261
7,407,152
9.155.492

The City's net position increased by $3,247,429 during the current fiscal year.

The City's total assets and deferred outflows at June 30, 2021 increased $3,648,716 from $65,990,859 to
$69,639,575, or 5.53% from the prior year. Cash increased by $3,578,618, or 15.29% from the prior year.
Receivables increased by $266,712, or 19.04% from the prior year. Inventories decreased by $31,650, or 8.38%
from the prior year. Capital assets, net, decreased by $1 ,'174,168, or 3.01%, from the prior year. The remaining
current assets, prepayments, decreased by $4,237, or 66.90%, from the prior year.

The City's total liabilities and deferred inflows at June 30, 2021 increased by $401,287, or 2.05%, from the prior
year. Accounts payable and other current liabilities decreased $203,926, or 18.05%, from the prior year. Interest
payable on long term debt decreased by $15,577 or 14.60% from the prior year. The City's outstanding debt
decreased $1,461,258, or 11.51%.



Revenues:
Program revenues:

Fines, fees & charges for
sen/ices

Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Unrestricted state revenue

sharing
Unrestricted investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Fire & emergency medical sen/ices
Police
Planning and development
Library and cultural services
Public works
Interest on long-term liabilities
Water utility
Sewer utifjty
Sanitation utility
Marinas

Total expenses

Change in net position
Net position, Jufy 1
Net position, June 30

City of Warrenton's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities
2021

$ 1,036,912
620,582
216,191

2,790,625
1,187,824

918,595

195,716
_7Q,238_

7,036,683.

844,932
1,012,786
2,095,763

704.569
306,963

1,037.323
175,690

6,178.026

858,657
12,885.181

$13.743.838

2020

$ 1,496,184
388,532
150,320

2,629,316
1,021,441

770,988

178,980
^6L818

_6^03A79_

817,381
869,110

2,006,391
521,224
298,160
847,099
200,155

_5,559^2Q

1,244,059
_tL.64_1,^22_

i.12,.885,181

-Bt-Lsi"ess_-type Activities
2021

$ 9.500,921
13,834

241^15

160,903

121.350

JO,Q38,423_

2,497,761
2,811,660
1,339,244
t.000,986

7,649,651

2,388,772
33,500.724

.$35^89,496

2020

$ 9,188,725
4,205

763,825

131,300

267.931

AP.355J986

3,349,542
2,708,920
1,168,557

958,139

^185 J58_

2.170.828
31,329,896

$33,500,724

Total
2021

$10,537,833
634,416
457,606

2,790,625
1,348,727

918,595

195.716
191.588

17,075,106

844,932
1,012,786
2,095,763

704,569
306,963

1,037,323
175,690

2,497,761
2,811,660
1,339,244
1.000.986

J.1827J377

3,247,429
46,385,905

&49.633.334

2020

$10,684,909
392,737
914,145

2,629,316
1.152,741

770,988

178,980
435749

17,159,565

817,381
869,110

2,006,391
521,224
298,160
847,099
200,155

3,349,542
2,708,920
1,168,557
_958J39_

13.744 ^78_

3,414,887
42.971.018

i46.385.905

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Cit/s net position by $858,657. The primary
elements of the change in total net position are as follows:

* Revenues overall increased $233,104 as program revenues decreased $161,351 and general revenues

increased $394,455. The decrease in program revenues relates to Building Permit revenues for a new

middle school and remodef of the County jail facility in the prior year.
• The General Fund permanent rate fax increased $88,034, the Urban Renewal Agency's fax increased

$23,032, local option taxes for the Police Department increased $16,110 and the Library increased
$18,213, and taxes to pay debt increased $15,920.

• Franchise fees increased by $147,607 during the year. This revenue can be cyclical due to weather
conditions and demand for telecommunication services.

• Other taxes increased $166,383 and unrestricted state revenue sharing increased $16,736.

• Unrestricted investment earnings (interest from bank accounts) decreased by $97,580 during the year.
• Interest expense on debt decreased $24,465 from the prior year.

• Total expenses increased by $618,506. This increase is mostly a resuft of increased street maintenance

offset by a decrease in pass through grant expenditures from the prior year.



The following graph summarizes the 2020-2021 governmental activity program revenues and corresponding
expenses. The revenues shown total $1,873,685, a decrease from the prior year of $161,351, are directly
attributable to each activity (program revenues) and do not include property taxes, other taxes, franchise fees,
unrestricted state revenue sharing, investment earnings, and other one-time or extraordinary revenue streams
which are discretionary (general revenues). Discretionary revenues amount to $5.162,998, an increase of
$394,455 from the prior year.
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This next chart shows the total functional revenues for each program in the amount of $1,873,685 by its source.

Program Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities

Public works, 621.519 General government, 476,919

rsf^f

Library and culture, 84,322

e^' ^fK

Planning & development, 421,581

Fjre and EMS. 230.476

Police. 30,868

As the next chart reflects, most 2020-2021 governmental activities relied on general discretionary revenues to
support the function. This graph shows total discretionary revenues in the amount of $5,162,998 by percentage in
each category

Discretionary Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities

Properly taxes, 54%

Unrestricted investment earnings, 1%
Unrestricted slate revenue'sharing, 4%

Other taxes, 23%

Franchise fees, 18l?o



Business-type activities, Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $2,388,772. Key elements
of this increase are as follows:

• Fines, fees, and charges for sen/ices had a net increase this year of $312,196 from the prior year.

Revenues increased in the Water fund, this year by $165,316, they increased in the Sewer Fund by

$126,410, and increased in the Sanitation Fund by $43,588, and the Marinas show decreases of $23,118.
Gross water sales increased by $206,073, or 5.55%, from the prior year, as a result of water consumption
increases of approximately 28 million gallons.

• Combined operating and capital grants and contributions decreased this year by $512,781 and are mostly
due to forgiveness of a water fund loan and capital contributions in the sewer fund in the previous year.

« Unrestricted investment earnings (interest from bank accounts) decreased by $146,581 during the year.
• Total business-type activity revenues decreased by $317,563.

• Total operating expenses decreased from the prior year in the amount of $535,507.

Business-type activities of the City of Warrenton are supported by charges for utility service, capital contributions,
development fees, and other grants. The graph below summarizes the 2020-2021 expenses and revenues of
those funds.
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Total program revenues in the business-type activities of the City total $9,756,170 as represented by the
percentages in the chart below for 2020-2021.

Program Revenues by Source
Business-type Activities

Marinas. 10.1%

Sanitation. 12.4%

Water, 42.2%

Sewer, 35.3%

In the following graph, discretionary revenues amount to $282,253. Other taxes are transient room tax dedicated
to the Hammond Marina.

Discretionary Revenues by Source
Business-fype Activities

Unrestricted investment earnings, 43%

Other taxes, 57%
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows.
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$9,766,189, an increase of $1,142,377 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 15.0% of this amount
($1,467,390) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion.
The remainder of the fund balance is either, nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is
1) not in spendable form ($0), 2) restricted for particular purposes ($7,740,673), 3) committed for particular
purposes ($75,820), or 4) assigned for particular purposes ($482,306).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund
balance of the General Fund was $1,467,390. This balance increased from the prior year, in the amount of
$424,299. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the categories of restrictions
placed on the fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents approximately 35.2% oftotai
General Fund expenditures and transfers out.

The fund balance of the City's Genera! Fund increased by $424,299 during the current fiscal year. While revenues
increased $438,723, expenditures decreased by $74,865. Key elements of the increase to fund balance are as
follows:

• Taxes increased by $229,262 during the year. Revenue in this category comes mostly from property taxes

and iand sales which increased by $125,836 and transient room tax which increased by $103,426.
• Franchise fees increased by $147,607. This revenue stream can be quite cyclical.

• Intergovernmental receipts from Oregon state revenue sharing for cigarette, liquor and marijuana taxes

and fees increased by $16,736.
• Charges for services increased by $68,283. This increase is mainly from planning sen/ices.

• Lease receipts increased by $2,671 due to scheduled increases per lease agreements.

• Fines and fees from Municipal Court decreased by $10,686.

• Investment (interest) earnings decreased by $12,015.
• Indirect cost allocations decreased by $82,012.
• Expenditures and other financing sources and uses in the General Fund decreased $99,265 from the prior

year. The increase in fire and emergency medical services ($'105,106) was offset by decreases in general

government (Administration, Commission, Finance and Municipal Court) ($75,441), public works
($17,672), police ($59,391), planning & development ($27,467) and transfers out ($24,400).

The State Tax Street Fund has a total fund baiance of $2,608,279, all of which is restricted to road maintenance.
The net increase in fund balance during the current year was $46,441.

• Revenue, from ail sources increased from the prior year by $8,141. Increases in State and City fuel taxes

of $37,523 were offset by the decrease in investment income of $30,110.

» Total expenses increased this year by $196,330. Operational expenses increased this year by $223,180

and capital project costs this year decreased by $26,850.

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation utilities amount to $14,188,207, and those for the
marinas amount to $1,162,736.

The total change in net position for ail funds was $2,391,034. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds
have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type activities.
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Bydgetarv Hlflhliflhts

The Commission approved changes to the original budgets of the Library, Faciiities Maintenance, and General
Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

A supplemental budget was approved in the Building Division Fund to transfer from Contingency to aliow for
additional spending authority for Professional Sen/ices for fire and life safety reviews and inspections provided by
a third party that was not known at the time the budget was prepared in the amount of $60,000.

An adjustment was approved and adopted in the Grants Fund for a specific purpose grant to increase both
resources and appropriations to pass through $50,000 of grant funds received from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (CARES) to help individuals affected by the economic impact of the COVID-19
pandemic with rent and utility assistance.

An adjustment was approved and adopted for a specific purpose grant in the General Fund to increase both
resources and appropriations in the amount of $60,622 from the State of Oregon to be passed through to
volunteers and staff for response to conflagration fires.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2021, amounts to $37,867,271. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, furniture and equipment, heavy equipment, vehicles, facilities (utilities) and work in progress. Net
capita! assets decreased by $1,174,168 during the year because capita) asset additions of $979,664 less current
year depreciation, in the amount of $2,153,832 net to the overall decrease of capital assets at the end of the year.

City of Warrenton's Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements
Facilities
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

Total

2,410,432 $ 2,410,432 $ 422,041 $ 422,041 $ 2,832,473 $ 2,832,473
2,864,787 2,961,249 1,406,449 1,260.550 4,271,236 4,221,799
1,581,002 1,744,444 819.809 976,850 2.400,811 2,721,294
1.048,620 1,094,759 402,165 415,466 1.450,785 1,510,225

21,914,164 23,079,365 21,914.164 23,079,365
3,803,150 3,926,903 - - 3,803,150 3.926,903
297.827 259.096 896.825 490,284 1.194.652 749,380

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the foliowing:

Equipment acquisitions amounted to a total of $7,491 for a solar system propane generator at the South
Water Reservoir.

Major capital improvements were asfoUows:

• Hammond Marina Dredging Project in the amount of $455,999.
• SW Anchor (Harbor-SE 3rd) Waterline Improvement in the amount of $143,161.

• SE 2nd and MarlEn Pump Station in the amount of $70,751.
• Bird netting at the Wastewater Treatment Plan in the amount of $47,198.

• SE Dolphin Sewer Laterals (4) in the amount of $40,954.
• SW Alder Avenue 2nd to 1st Improvement in the amount of $25,340.

• Remodel of the public works offices in the amount of $16,540.

• Replace Raw Water Pipe Downstream in the amount of $13.778.

• The Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency spent $106,984 in capital improvements this year for food pod
parkiing lot improvement ($11,290). a portion of SW 4th Street Improvement ($6,180), Downtown
improvements ($25,467) and City Hall Parking Lot Lights ($64,047).
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Overall, these construction and equipment additions total $937,966 and represent approximately 96% of the total
additions.

Additional information regarding the City's capital assets can be found at Note III C.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt of $10,955,299. Of this
amount, $5,740,730 is proprietary fund secured loans and $4,882,488 represents outstanding bonded
indebtedness. The bonded indebtedness represents debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

General obligation bonds
Tax increment financial bonds
Notes payable

Total

City of Warrenton's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities
2021

$ 2,780,287
2,102,201

.332.081

$5.214.569

2020
$ 3,239.574

2,391,955
393,226

$ 6.024,755

Business-type

2021

5,740730

$ 5,740,730 1

Activities
2020

6,432.998

6.432,998

Total
2021

$ 2,780,287
2,102,201
6,072,811

$10,955.299

2020
$ 3,239,574

2,391,955
6.826,224

$12.457.753

Additional information on the City of Warrenton's long-term debt can be found in Note III E.

Economic Factors and J^ext Y_ear!>s Bydciets_and Rates

During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the long-term impacts of the local economy were
examined in conjunction with business decisions made by the City. The onset of the Covid-19 Pandemic brought
many uncertainties into the budget process. The following are the major assumptions used in developing the FY
2022 budget:

• A 3% increase in assessed property values resulting in the same increase in property tax revenue.
• Cost of living adjustment to wages of 2.0% for police association members and 2.5% for general union and

non-union employees..

* No increases in water utility, sewer utility and storm sewer rates in response to the Covid-19 Pandemic.
• Reduced estimated Transient Room Tax receipts due to Covid-19 Pandemic.

• Interest rates on money market and savings accounts are declining.

• On the expenditure side, increases are expected in health insurance premiums.

• The City of Warrenton continues to purchase a catastrophic liability insurance policy to protect itself from
unforeseen losses in excess of $5 million.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in
the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed to the foilowing address:

April Clark
Finance Director
City of Warrenton
P.O. Box 250
Warrenton. OR 97146

14



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





CITY OF WARRENTON

Statement of Net Position

June 30. 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
inventory, at cost
Prepaid items
Restricted cash
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions

Total assets and deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

NET POSmON
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Road maintenance
Debt service
Library and culture
Public works
Urban renewal improvements
Building inspection program
Debt service
System development

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental
Activities

$ 9,686,376
743,943

2.708,259
9.297.559

22,436,137

1,598.306

24.034.443

517.233
14,679

133,959
1,014

833,005
4.381,564
A210J87
10,091,641

198.964

10,290.605

9,571,536

2,602.749
2,737,679

167,932
157,245

13.175
838,522

1,253,120
,3.598.120^

$ 13,743.838

Business-Type
Activities

$ 17.297,495 $
923,354
346,110

2.096
63,012

1,318,866
24,542.587

44,493,520

1.111.612

45.605.132

408,404
76,466

121,222
24,523

725,159
5.293,343
2,928.140
9,577.257

138.379

9.715.636

20,120,723

63.012
351.674

15.354.087

$ 35.889.496 t

Total

26,983,871
1,667,297

346,110
2,096

63,012

4,027,125
33.840,146

66,929,657

2.709.918

69.639.575

925,637
91,145

255,181
25,537

1,558,164
9,674.907
7.138.327

19.668,898

_337^43

20.006.241

29,692,259

2,602,749
2,737,679

167,932
157,245

13,175
838.522
63,012

1,604,794
11.755.967

49.633.334

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Functions/Programs

Program Revenues

Expenses

Indirect
Expense

Allocation

Fees, Fines,

and Charges
for Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capita!
Grants and

Contributions

Governmental activities:
General government
Fire and emergency medical

services
Police
Planning and development
Library and culture
Public works
Interest on long-term liabilities

$ 1,831,033 $ (986.101) $ 336,109 $ 140,810 $

966,588
2.034,838

685,202
278,215
971,455
175.690

46,198
60,925
19,367
28,748
65,868

230,152
27.451

362,096
73,105

7,999

Total governmental activities 6.943.021 (764.995) 1.036.912

Business-type activities:
Water utilities
Sewer utilities
Sanitation utilities
Marinas

Totat business-type activities

Total activities

2,223,093
2,505.924
1,261,070
_894,569_

274,668
305,736

78,174
106.417

3,995,555
3,357,304
1.207,572

940.490

6.884.656 764,995 9.500.921

8.324
3,417

59,485
11.217

397,329

620.582

2,855
3.195

886
6.898

13.834

216.191

216.191

120,044
85,114

36.257

241.415

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes levied for general purpose
Property taxes levied for debt service
Other taxes

Franchise fees
Unrestricted state revenue sharing
Unrestricted investment earnings

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ (368,013) $ $ (368,013)

(774,310)
(2,064,895)

(282,988)
(222,641)
(415,804)
H 75.690)

f4.304.341}

f4.304.341}

1,415,951
1.374,674
1,187,824

918,595
195,716
70.238

5.162,998

858,657

12.885.181

$ 13.743.838 ^

1,620,693
633,953

(130,786)
m34D

2.106.519

2.106.519

160.903

121.350

282.253

2,388,772

33.500.724

; 35.889.496

(774,310)
(2,064,895)

(282,988)
(222,641)
(415,804)
(175.690)

^4,304.341)

1,620.693
633,953

(130,786)
^17,341)

_2J 06,519

f2.197.822l

1,415,951
1,374,674
1,348,727

918,595
195,716
191.588

5.445.251

3,247.429

46.385.905

49.633.334

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
Rehabilitation loans
Intergovernmental
Grants
Other

Due from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources;
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Road maintenance
Debt service
Library and culture
Public works
Urban renewal improvements
Building inspection program
System development

Committed to:
Library and culture
Grant expenditures

Assigned to:
Capital projects

Unassigned

Total fund balances

general (001)

$ 1,431,329

61,101
293,686

48,462
38.049

15.157

$ 1.887.784

State Tax
_Street (04Q)_

$ 2.562,035

98.938

2.660.973

3 AND FUND BALANCES

$ 329,863
822

$ 52,694

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

$ 5,693>012 3

82,942
88,022

1.550
15.994
15,200

$ 5.896.720 ^

$ 134,674 S
192

15,157_

Tota!

i 9,686.376

144.043
381,708
48,462

138,537
15,994
15,200
15.157

& 10,445.477

& 517.231
1,014

15.157

330.685 52.694 150.023

89,7Q9_ 56.177

2,608,279
2,698,997

162,709
157,245

13,175
847,148

1,253,120

70.196
5,624

482,306
1,467,39Q_

533.402

145.886

2,608,279
2,698,997

162,709
157,245
13,175

847.148
1,253,120

70,196
5,624

482,306
1.467.390

1,467J90_ _ 2.608.279 5.690.520 9.766.189

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 1.887.784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Amounts reported for govemmentaf activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Fund balances - governmental funds $ 9,766,189

Receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 145,883

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore are not reported in the funds:

Nondepreciable assets $ 2,708,259
Depreciable assets 9.297.559

12,005,818

Assets, liabilities, deferred infiows and deferred outflows related to the
City's portion of the State-wide pension plan are not current resources
or requirements and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,598,306
Net pension liability (4,210,187)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions ^198,964^

(2,810,845)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Compensated absences (133,959)
Accrued interest payable (14,679)
Long-term debt {5.214.569^

?.363.207)

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Revenues:
Taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for sen/ices
Lease receipts
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Donations
Indirect cost allocation
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Fire and emergency medical services
Police
Planning and development
Library and culture
Public works

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest expense

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital contributions

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances;
Beginning of year
End of year

General
(001)

$ 1,766,395
918,595

500
286,260
262,372
219,383
109,518

7,365

1,008,696
13,249

_4,592,333,

1,150.503
792,625

1,752,581
217,124

112,990

61,145
10,888

4.097.856

494.477

(70.178)

mi 78)

State Tax
Street (040)

$ 355,409

397,329

19,448

8,077

780,263_

713,987

22.210

736.197

44,Q66_

2.375

2.375

Non major
Governmental

Funds

$ 1,881,967 $

350,982
122,065

7,974

311
43,424
56,142

64.420

2.527.285

383,930
16.647
4,652

407.274
248,266

749,041
167,224
117.109

2.094.143

433.142

272.292
(202.114)
168.317

238,495

Total

4,003,771
918,595
351,482
805.654
270,346
219,383
109,829
70,237
56,142

1,008,696
85.746_

7.899.881

1,534,433
809,272

1,757,233
624,398
248,266
826,977

810,186
178,112
139,319

6.928.196

971.685

272,292
(272.292)
170.692

170.692

424.299 46,441

1.043.091 2.561.838

671,637

5.018.883

1,142,377

8.623.812

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
20



CITY OF WARRENTON

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

June 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 1,1 42.377

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Change En unavailable revenues (24,359)

Capital outiays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, the Statement of Activities allocates the cost of capita!
outlays over their estimated useful iives as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets $ 145,618
Current year depreciation (536,683)
Disposition of capital assets _(891)

(391.956)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in;
Compensated absences (22,810)
Accrued interest payable 2,423

Expenses related to pension obligations ?57.204)

(677,591)

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt provide current financial
resources to governmental funds and are reported as other financing
sources. In the same way, repayments of long-term debt use current
financial resources and are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. However, neither the receipt of debt proceeds nor the payment
of debt principal affect the Statement of Activities, but are reported as
increases and decreases in noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of
Net Position.

Repayment of long-term debt 810.186

810,186

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 858.657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

General Fund

Statement of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Lease receipts
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Indirect cost allocation
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 600,000
1,632,840

854,281
550

168,891
229,524
216,473
136,700

18,000
1,167,282

1,200

Final Budget

$ 600,000 5
1,632,840

854,281
550

168,891
290,146
216,473
136,700

18.000
1,167,282

1.200

Actual

; 1,043.091 ;
1,766,395

918,595
500

286,260
262,372
219,383
109,518

7,365
1,008,696

13.249

Variance

$ 443,091
133,555
64.314

(50)
117,369
(27,774)

2,910
(27,182)
(10,635)

(158,586)
12,Q49_

$ 5.025.741 $ 5.086.363 $ 5.635.424 $ 549,061

Requirements:
Municipal Court
Administration/Commission
Community Development
Police
Fire
Parks
Contingency
Transfers

Total department requirements
Ending fund balance

Total requirements

160,306
1,167,282

292,992
2,000,654

855,386
163,557
235,517

70,178
4,945,872

79.869

160,306
1.167,282

292,992
2.000,654

916,008
163,557
235,517

70,178

141,807
1,008,696

217,124
1.752.581

864,658
112,990

70.178
5.006,494

79.869
4,168,034
1.467.390

18,499
158,586
75,868

248,073
51,350
50,567

235,517

838,460
ft .387.521^

(549,061)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITYOFWARRENTON

State Tax Street Fund

Statement of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Capital contributions
Other revenue

Total resources

Requirements:
Public Works;

Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Original
Budget

$ 2.300,000
307,000
377,965
25.000

$ 3.009.965

$ 136,649
740,605

1,797.638

2,674,892
198.000

2,872,892

137.073

Final Budget

$ 2,300,000 3
307,000
377,965
25.000

$ 3.009.965

$ 136,649 3
740,605

1.797.638

2,674,892
198.000

2,872,892

137.073

Actual

> 2,561.838
355,409
397,329

19,448
2.375
8,077

3,344.476

> 112,829
601,158
_22,210

736,197

736,197

2.608.279

Variance

$ 261,838
48,409
19,364
(5,552)
2,375
8,077

334,511

$ 23,820
139,447

1.775.428

1,938,695
198,000

2,136,695

f2.471.2061

Total requirements $ 3.009.965 f334.511^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash
Capital assets:

Nondepredabie assets
Depreciable assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Loans payable - current
Landfill postclosure care" current

Total current liabilities 741,240

Noncurrent liabiiities:
Loans payable
Landfill postdosure care liability
Net pension fiabitity

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions

Water
Enterprise

Fund

$ 6,609,100
376,042

236,412
885_

7.222.439

Business-type Activities" Enterprise Funds
Sewer

Enterprise
Fund

$ 8,428,540
342,100

2,575
88,137

81_8_

8.862.170

Sanitation
Enterprise

Fund

$ 655,348
118.928

21,561
393_

796.230

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

$1,598,971
17,414
66,295

1.682.680

Total

$17,291,959
854,484
66,295

2,575
346,110

2,096
18.563.519

Business-type
Activities

Engineering
Internal Service

Fund (042)

$ 5,536

_5,536_

NET POSITION
Net investment in capita) assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for system development
Unrestricted

Total net position

9,545,182

154,811
6.236,428_

63,012 63,012

360,140
13.231,591
13.591731

20.814.170

JRCES
378,306

135,307
9.424.608
9.622,927

18^85.097

391.584

29,669
570,555
600.224

1.396.454

122,49Q_

793,750
1,315,833
2.109,583

3,792.263

219,232_

1,318,866
24.542.587
25,924,465

^4.487.984

'1.111.612

_5,536_

67,776
64,127
34,000

575,337

168,761
12,339
46,791

785
138,172

91,389

7,860

11.650

80,445

30,212
23,738

408,371
76,466

118,863
24,523

713,509
11,650

33

2,359

366,848 110,899 134.395 1,353,382

7,865,734
63,012

196,863
7.747,981

600,224 2,109,583

_203,798_ 1,162.736

20,120.723
63,012

351,674
15.350.943

2,392

3,471,212

996.510

5.208,962

CES
47.093

1

A

1

,556,009

,031.488

,954.345

48.746

266,122
322.652

699,673

15.249

577,490_

711.885

_27,291_

5,027,221
266,122

2.928.140

9,574,865

138,379

2.392

3.144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position of Enterprise Funds to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Net position - enterprise funds $ 35,886,352

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of
engineering to individual funds. The assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the internai
service fund are included in business-type activities in the statement
of net position. _3,144

Net position of business-type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITYOFWARRENTON

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Lease receipts
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
PayroSi and payroll benefits
Contracted sen/ices
Utilities and telephone
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Overhead cost allocation
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment earnings
Taxes
intergovernmental
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capita! contributions

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year
End of year

Water
Enterprise

Fund

$ 3,990,439

5.116
_3,995,555_

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer

Enterprise
Fund

$ 3,342,368

14.936
3.357.304

Sanitation
Enterprise

Fund

$1,204,697

2.875
1.207,572

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

$ 891,259 {
42,789
6.442

940.490

Total

? 9,428,763
42,789
29.369

9.500.921

Business-type
Activities

Engineering
tnterna! Sen/ice

Fund (042)

$ 4,030

4.030

916,811
134,757
110,455
223,915
230,023
109,565
651,965_

1,090,077
174,417
167,335
259,747
195,758
121,958
758.514

341,720
728,253

7,215
40,749
89,977
31,184

100.146

586,598
20,045

120,824
78,122
46,423
42,450

A06,524_

2
1

1

,935,206
,057,472
405,829
602,533
562,181
305,157
.617.149

_2,377,491_ 2,767.806. _. 1,339,244_ 1,000,986. 7.485.527

1.618.064

43,072

1,664,896

589.498 n 31.672) (60.496) 2.015.394

58,022 4,476 15,780
160,903

121,350
160,903

693,106

14.271.525 15.180.484

(126,310) 159,342 2,391.034

930.332 ^J12,977_ 33.495.318

6,292

6,292_

{2,2621

2,855
f119.139)

,73,212)

1,544,852

120.044

3,195
(42,723}

18.494

607.992

85.114

886

5,362

(126,310)

43,155

219.838

159,342

50,(
(W.Q62}

170,482_

2,185,876

205,158

(2,262)

(2,262)

5.406

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position of Enterprise Funds to the Statement of Activities

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Change En net position - enterprise funds

The internal sen/ice fund is used by management to charge the cost of engineering
services to individual funds. The net revenue is reported with business-type
activities in the statement of activities

Change in net position of business-type activities

$ 2.391,034

(2,262}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water

Enterprise
Fund

Sewer
Enterprise

Fund

Sanitation
Enterprise

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Business-type
Activities

Engineering
Internal Service

Fund (042)

Receipts from customers
Receipts from interfund charges
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating

$4,002.528 $3,350,848 $1,208,582 $ 962.495 $ 9,524,453 $

(699,149)
(679.022)
(274.Q6Q}

(757,879)
(792,767)
(305,7361

(806,750)
(226,030)

{78.^74}

(256,819)
(416,851)
,106.418)

(2,520,597)
(2,1U.670)

(764.9961

2.349.689 1.494.466 97,628 182,407 _..^124J_90

4,030

(3,900)

130

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental operating grants 2,855 3,195
Taxes collected __ " __ -

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

6,898
132.400

13,834
132.400

2,855 3.195 886 139,298 146.234_

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVmES
intergovernmental capital grants
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capita!

assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt

122,244

(169,746)
(557,940)
(131,0221

85,114

(156,237)
(134,328)

(43,994^

(379,831)

40.599

(395,514)

40,599
207,358

(1,101,328)
(692,268)
(175.016)

Net cash used in capita! and related
financing activities _.C736,464) . {249,445) _ (37M31) _(354,9151 . (L72Q.655)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received _43.072 58.022 4.476 15,780 121.350

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

1,659,152 1,306,238 (276,841) (17,430) 2,671,119

A949,948 . 7J85.314 _. 932J89 _L616,401_ . -f4.683.852

130

?.406j
(5,276}

Cash and cash equivalents are reported on the Statement of Net Position as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

$6,609,100 $8.428,540 $ 655,348 $1,598,971 $17,291,959 $ 5,536

63.012 __ __ 63.012 _i.
5,536

Continued on next page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Business-type Activities" Enterprise Funds
Business-type

Activities
Water

Enterprise
Fund

Sewer
Enterprise

Fund

Sanitation
Enterprise

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Reconciliation of operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension adjustments
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Landfill postciosure care liability

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

651,965
72,784

7,003
2,893

787

(3.709)
(98)

Total

Engineering
Internal Service

Fund (042)

$1,618,064 $ 589,498 $(131,672) $ (60,496) $2,015,394 $

758,514
109,661

(6,433)
25,579

806

12,970
3,871

100,146
68,127

1,019
3,178

210

14,851
573

41.196

106.524
100,755

7,384

492

8.103
5,024

14,621

1,617,149
351,327

8,973
31,650

2,295

32,215
9,370

14,621
41,196_

(2,262)

33
2,359

Schedule of noncash transactions:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

Note_i_-_Sy!Hmary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Warrenton, Oregon ("City") is a municipal corporation incorporated on February 11, 1899, The
City operates under a council-city manager form of government. The governing body (City Commission)
consists of five eiected members who serve four-year terms. The City Manager administers policies and
coordinates the activities of the City. The City Manager reports to, and is responsible to the City Commission.
The heads of various departments, formed to provide various services, are under the direct supervision of the
City Manager.

The City has the authority to levy taxes on property within the city for basic services and for payment of
general obligation bonds. It has exercised that authority for several years.

Blended component unit. The Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency ("Agency") serves all citizens of the City and
is governed by a Board comprised of members of the City Commission. The Agency was formed by the City
to implement various public improvement programs in the revitalization plan of the City. Projects are funded
through tax increment dollars. Separate financial statements for the Agency can be obtained from the City.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The govern ment-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a whole.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. These statements
focus on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from
the activities of the fiscal period. These aggregated statements consist of the statement of net position and
the statement of activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and allocated indirect expenses of a
given function or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or program. Indirect expenses are those costs, usually administrative in
nature, that support ail City functions, programs, and enable direct services to be provided. Program
revenues include 1) fees, fines, and charges to customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or program and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individuai enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated in a single column on these statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The govern me nt-wide and proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognised as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note L- Summary of Siflnificant Accountms Policies, Continued

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, Continued

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and avaiSabte only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. it accounts for all of the financial
operations of the City except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of
revenue are property taxes, licenses and permits, state and county shared revenues and charges for
administrative services from other funds. Primary expenditures are for general government and police
and fire protection.

The Qtate Tax Street Fund accounts for funds provided by the Oregon State Department of Transportation
and State Highway Trust Fund that are set aside for bicycle lanes, pedestrian paths, street maintenance
and repair, and street lighting. The fund also accounts for the City fuel tax.

Additionally, the City reports the foiiowing nonmajor funds \A/ithin the governmental fund type:

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted or
committed to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt sen/sce funds account for the servicing of general long-term debt. Revenue sources are property
taxes levied for general obligation bonds and other general governmental revenues.

Capital project funds account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type or proprietary funds).

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Enterprise Fund (a combination of the operating, system development, and capital reserve
funds) accounts for the costs of operating the water system of the City and paying for its costs and
renovation. User fees provide revenue.

The Sewer Entefprise Fund (a combination of the operating, system development, capital reserve, storm
sewer, and storm sewer system development funds) accounts for the costs of operating the sewer and
storm facilities. User fees provide the revenue.

The SanitQtion Enterprise Fund (a combination of the operating and capital reserve funds) accounts for
the costs of providing trash removal services. User fees provide the revenue.

Additionally, the City reports the Engineenng Internal Sen//ce Fund to account for the cost of providing
engineering sen/ices to other departments of the City. Internal user fees provide revenue to the fund.

As a general ru!e the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govern ment-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are reasonably
equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the City's enterprise funds
and various other functions of the City. The City allocates charges as reimbursement for services provided by
the general fund in support of those functions based on levels of service provided. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
These charges are included in direct program expenses.
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NofeJ_-Symmai^ of ^i(inifLcantJ^ccoAintinfl Policies.continued

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, Continued

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are
charges to customers for safes and services. Significant operating expenses include personnel, contracted
services, repairs and maintenance, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Deposits and Investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
investments in the State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool ("LGIP").

State statutes authorize the City to invest En obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate
bonds, and repurchase agreements.

2. Receivables and Payabies

Sen/ice and property taxes receivables that meet the measurable and available criteria for revenue
recognition are accrued as revenue in the governmental funds financial statements. Receivables in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are accrued as revenue when earned. In
governmental funds, any revenues not meeting the revenue recognition criteria are offset by unavailable
revenue accounts.

Special assessments receivable in the governmental funds and proprietary funds are recognized at the
time the property owners are assessed for property improvements. In governmental funds special
assessments receivable are offset by unavailable revenue accounts and, accordingly, have not been
recognized as revenue.

Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1st. Property taxes are assessed in October and tax
payments are due November 15th of the same year. Under the partial payment schedule, the first one-
third of taxes are due November 15th of the same year, the second one-third on February 15th, and the
remaining one-third on May 15th. A three percent discount is allowed if full payment is made by
November 15th and a two percent discount is allowed if two-thirds payment is made by November 15th.
Taxes become delinquent if not paid by the due date and interest accrues after each trimester at a rate of
one percent per month. Property foreclosure proceedings are initiated four years after the due date.

Receivables for housing rehabilitation loans in the general fund are recognized at the time the loan is
made. The loans receivabfe are offset by an unavailable revenue account and accordingly, have not been
recognized as revenue in the governmental fund financial statements.

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or "advances to/from other funds" (Le., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances beh/veen funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."

In the govern ment-wide financial statements any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
and business-type activities are reported as "internal balances."
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Note I - Summarvof SLqnificantAccountinQ Policies, Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/! nflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, Continued

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of materials and supplies in the proprietary funds are stated at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis,
and charged to expense as used.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both govern me nt-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Cash

Cash whose use is restricted for construction, debt service or by other agreement are segregated on the
government-wide statement and the proprietary funds statement of net position and the governmental
funds balance sheet.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, right-of-way (included with land), buildings, improvements, equipment,
infrastructure, and other tangible assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities cotumns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
governiDent as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life
beyond a single reporting period. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of the
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.

No depreciation is taken in the year the assets are acquired. Gains or losses from sales or retirements of
capital assets are included in operations of the current period.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Assets Years
Parking and land improvements
Buildings
Equipment and vehicles
Dike and flood control
infrastructure
Utility facilities

10-50
10-50
5-40
20-40
20-25
5-40

6. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

in addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government-wide statements and the
enterprise funds report deferred outflows of resources related to pensions.
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outffows/ln flows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, Continued

6. Deferred OuWows/lnflows of Resources, Continued

in addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City reports two types of deferred inflows.
Unavailable revenues, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, are reported only in
the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from
property taxes, occupancy taxes, franchise fees and rehabilitation loans. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The government-
wide statements and the enterprise funds report deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.

A detailed description of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and how they are
cafculated can be found in note lil.F.

7. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumufated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay
any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the governmenf-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements. The compensated absences liabifity is extinguished by the fund in
which the liability is incurred.

8. Long'-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the bonds-outstanding method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures in the year the debt is issued.

9. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) and additions to/deducfions from OPERS's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, Continued

10. Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular resource from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net
position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is
the City's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is
applied.

11. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financiai statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to considered restricted fund balance to have been
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

12. Fund Balance Policies

In the fund financial statements, the fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The fund balance classifications
are:

Nonspendable - resources cannot be spent because they are either in a nonspendabie form or legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact. Resources in nonspendabie form include
inventories, prepaids and deposits, and assets held for sate.

Restricted - constraints placed on the use of resources are either; (a) externally imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants), grants, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments;
or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - the City Commission passes an ordinance that places specific constraints on how the
resources may be used. The City Commission can modify or rescind the ordinance at any time
through passage of an additional ordinance.

Assigned - resources that are constrained by the City's intent to use them for a specific purpose, but
are neither restricted, nor committed. Intent is expressed when the City Commission approves which
resources should be "reserved" during the adoption of the annual budget.

Unassigned - resources that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General
Fund. This classification is also used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other
governmental funds.

13. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingiy, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note I! - Stewardship, Compliance. and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 294 " Local Budget
Law).

A budget is prepared by the City Manager in the early winter preceding the fiscal year the budget will be used.
The City is required to budget for all funds. The City's budget is prepared for each fund on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The budget committee, with public input, deliberates and approves the budget for
transmittal to the City Commission in eariy spring. After public notices and a hearing, the final budget is
adopted, appropriations made, and a tax levy declared no later than June 30.

The City Commission resolution adopting the budget and authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the
level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriation. The tevet of control for all City funds is by
department, debt service, interfund transfers, and contingency. The level of control for the Warrenton Urban
Renewal Agency funds is by materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, interfund transfers, and
contingency. Appropriations lapse as ofyear-end.

Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations except in the case of grants which could not be estimated
at the time of budget adoption. Supplemental appropriations and appropriation transfers may occur with
notice and City Commission action.

Note III - Detailed Notes On All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment poo! for its cash and cash equivalents in which each fund
participates. Cash and investments comprise the following:

Petty cash $ 1,200
Deposits with financial institutjons 1,536,196
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool 25.509.487
Total $ 27.046.883

Cash and investments are reflected in the government-wide Statement of Net Position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,983,871
Restricted cash _,_63.012

Total $ ,27,046,883

Deposits. All deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds Collateralizatjon
Program ("PFCP") of the State of Oregon. The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating bank
depositories. Barring any exceptions, a bank depository is required to pledge collateral valued at least 10% of
their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits
if they are adequately capitalized, or 110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitafized
or assigned to pledge 110% by the Office of State Treasurer. In the event of a bank failure, the entire pool of
collateral pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public
funds of government entities.

The Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LG1P) is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio offered
to any municipality, political subdivision or public corporation of the State that by law is made the custodian of.
or has control of, any public funds. The Office of the State Treasurer (OST) manages the LGIP. The LG!P is
commingled with other State funds in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is not managed as a
stable net asset value fund; therefore, the presen/ation of principal is not assured. Additional information
about the OSTF can be obtained at www.ost.state.or.us and www.oregon.gov/treasury.
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Note 111 - Detailed Notes On_All Funds, Continued

A. Deposits and Investments, Continued

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's
deposits may not be returned to it. At June 30, 2021, the City's deposits were covered and collate ralized by
federal depository insurance and the PFCP.

Credit Risk - tnvestments. The City has no investment policy for credit risk, but in practice foilows state
statutes which authorize the City to invest primarily in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers
acceptances, certain commercial papers and the State Treasurer's investment Pool, among others. The LGIP
is not rated by a national rating service.

Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that explicitly limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates. The
weighted-average maturity of LGIP is less than one year.

B. Receivables and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Housing rehabilitation loans

The City has lent money to qualifying property owners through a federally funded low-income housing
rehabilitation program. The loans are non interest-b earing and become a lien against the property,
payable upon sale of the property or death of the owner.

Unavailable revenues

At the end of the current fiscal year, the components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmental
funds were as follows:

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Service

Genera! Fund Revenue Funds Funds Total

Delinquent property taxes receivable $ 41,247 $ 7,415 $ 48,762 $ 97,424
Rehabilitation loans _ 48.462 _ __-_ __ __ - __48,462_

Total unavailable revenues
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Note III - Detailed Notes On All Funds. Continued

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as foifows:

Beginning Ending
Balance increases Decreases Transfers Baiance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being

depreciated:
Land $ 2,410,432 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,410,432
Construction in progress 259.096 64,725 __ (25,994} 297,827

Total capital assets,
not being
depreciated 2.669.528 64.725 __ {25,994} 2,708.259

Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Parking and land

improvements 1,673,783 10,367
Buildings 4,743,007 6,479
Equipment and vehicles 3,623,614 - (120,773)
Infrastructure 6.057.383 64.047 _^

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 16.097.787 80,893 ^120.773^ 25.994 16.083.901

Less accumulated
depreciation for;
Parking and land

improvements (579,024) (69,099) - - (648.123)
Buildings (1,781,758) (105.174) " - (1,886.932)
Equipment and vehicles (1,879,170) (163,442) 120,773 - (1,921 ,839)
Infrastructure _(2,1M480) __ (198,968) __ _- __ _- _f2.329.448)

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 12,396.883

12
2

11

,593
,233

,168

1
4
3
6

,696
,751
,502
.132

.743
,719
,841
.598
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.727
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.297,
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Note III - Detailed Notes On AlLEunds, Continued

C. Capital Assets, Continued

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being

depreciated:
Land $ 422,041 $ - $ - $ - $ 422,041
Construction in progress 490,284 499.886 __ f93,345^ 896.825

Total capital assets,
not being
depreciated 912.325 499.886 __ (93.345^ 1.318,866

Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Parking areas 920,677 1,672 - 4.838 927,187
Buildings 2.561,498 133,646 - 67,877 2,763,021
Equipment and vehicles 5,314.906 7,491 - - 5,322,397
Utility facilities 44.697.136 191.351 f535,908) 20.630 44.373.209

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 53,494,217 334.160 (535,908) 93.345 53.385.814

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Parking areas (505,211) (19,811) - - (525,022)
Buildings (1,300,948) (55,624) - - (1,356,572)
Equipment and vehicles (4.338,056) (164,532) - - (4,502,588)
Utility facilities

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 26,644.556 $ ^783,103) $ $ $ 25.861,453

(21

f27
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Note III ^Detailed Notes On All Funds, Continued

C. Capital Assets, Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 181,829
Fire and emergency medical services 100,056
Police 47,892
Planning and development 7
Library and culture 22,996
Public works __183.903

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 536,683

Business-type activities;
Water utilities $ 651,965
Sewer utilities 758,514
Sanitation utilities 100,146
Marinas __106,524

Total depreciation expense " business-type activities $ 1,617.149

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

At June 30, 2021, the grants fund, a nonmaj'or governmental fund, owed $15,157 to the general fund to cover
expenditures which have not yet been reimbursed by the granting agencies.

During the year ended June 30, 2021 the general fund transferred $70,178 to nonmajor governmental funds.
Interfund transfers were used to provide funds for debt service, contribute towards the cost of capital projects,
and to provide operationai resources.

During the year ended June 30, 2021 $202,114 was transferred within nonmajor governmental funds for debt
service and capital expenditures.

39



CITY OF WARRENTON

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note 11) - Detailed Notes On_AII Funds, Continued

E. Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as fo!Jows:

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds

payable
Direct Borrowings:

Tax increment financial
bonds

Notes/loans payable

Total long-term debt
Net pension liability
Compensated absences

Beginning
Balance

$ 3.239,574

2,391,955
393.226

6.024,755
2,846,770

111. 149

Additions

1,363,417
1_31959_

Reductions

$ (459,287) ^

(289.754)
(61.145^

(810,186)

(111.149^

Ending
Balance

; 2,780,287

2,102,201
332.081

5.214,569
4,210,187

133.959

Due Within
One Year

$ 472,890

297,276
62.839

833,005

133,959_

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities

Business-Type Activities:
Loans payable - direct

borrowings
Landfill postclosure care

(see note 1V.D.)

Total noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
Compensated absences

Business-type activities
long-term liabilities

6,432,998

236.576 53.792

(692,268)

n 2,596^

5,740,730

277.772

6,669,574
2,119.680

109.493

53,792
808,460
121.222

(704,864)

(109.493)

6,018,502
2,928,140

121.222

713,509

11.650

725.159

121.222

General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Purpose
interest Governmental
Rates Activities

The general obligation bonds series 2007 in the original amount of $8,079,696 were
facilities bonds. The bonds were authorized by taxpayers in November 2006 to 2.94%
finance improvements to the wastewafer treatment and disposal system of the plus
City. These general obiigation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full 0.5%
faith and credit of the City. The Wastewater Treatment GO Bond fund is used to annual
liquidate these bonds. Final maturity of these 20-year bonds is December 1, 2026. fee

Total general obligation bonds outstanding
Less current portion

Long-term portion

$ 2.780.287

2,780,287
f472.8901
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E. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

Tax increment financial bonds outstanding at June 30, 2021 were as folfows:

Purpose
Interest
Rates

Governmental
Activities

The urban renewal bond series 2012, in the original amount of $1,640,000, was used
to finance urban renewal projects. This tax increment financing is secured by
assignment of incremental tax revenues. The Warrenfon Urban Renewal Agency
Debt Service fund is used to liquidate these bonds. The bond matures on June 15,
2027. 3.75% $ 766.000

The urban renewal bond series 2016, in the original amount of $2,200,000, was used
to finance urban renewal projects. This tax increment financing is secured by
assignment of incremental tax revenues. The Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency
Debt Service fund is used to liquidate these bonds. The bond matures on June 1,
2028.

Total debt outstanding
Less current portion

Long-term portion

1.86% 1,336.201

2,102,201
(297.276)

$ 1,804,925

If an event of default occurs on any of the direct borrowings Columbia Bank (Bank) may exercise any remedy
available at law or in equity under the provisions of the Master Resolution. If an event of default occurs due to
nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts when due, or failure to maintain the tax-exempt
status of the obligation, then the Bank may increase the interest rate to 8.75% on the series 2012 bonds or 5%
on the series 2016 bonds.

Notes/loans outstanding at June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Purpose
Interest Governmental Business-
Rates Activities Type Activities

The Full Faith and Credit Note, Series 2015, in the original amount
of $621,771, was used as a deposit on the purchase of an aerial
fire truck that was purchased in FY2017. The General fund is
used to liquidate this note. The loan is secured by Warrenton
Fiber Revenues and matures on December 29, 2025. If an event
of default occurs, the interest rate on the note shall be equal to
the 10-year US Treasury rate plus 2%.

The Oregon Economic Development Department loan G99001A
Bond in the original amount of $3,165,000 was used in the water
enterprise for equipment and facilities. The loan matures on
December 1, 2023 and is secured by water facilities.

The Oregon Economic Development Department loan S99005 in the
original amount of $2,000,000 was used in the water enterprise
for equipment and facilities. The loan matures on December 1,
2021 and is secured by water facilities.

2.7690% $ 332,081 $

5.16% " 612,693

4.1% - 142,621
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Purpose
interest Governmental Business-
F^ates _ Activities Type Activities

The Oregon Economic Development Department loan G99001B in
the original amount of $300,000 was used in the water enterprise
for equipment and facilities. The loan matures on December 1,
2024 and is secured by water facilities. 5.16% $ - $ 109,219

The Oregon Economic Development Department loan S02011 in the
original amount of $2,657,000 was used in the water enterprise
for equipment and facilities. The loan matures on December 1,
2031 and is secured by water facilities. 1.0% - 1,067,389

The Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority loan SZ9012 was
issued in the original amount up to $5,399,048 and was used in
the design and construction of a new covered-water resen/oir.
$2,699,524 of the loan was forgiven upon completion of the
project and was recognized as a capital contribution in 2013. The
loan matures on December 1, 2033 and is secured by the net
revenues of the water fund. 3.0% - 1,750,821

The Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority ban S17016 was
issued in the original amount up to $1,100,000 and was used to
replace manuai-read water meters with radio-read water meters.
$629,708 of the loan was forgiven upon completion of the project
and was recognized as a capital contribution in 2019. The loan
matures on December 1, 2037 and is secured by the net
revenues of the water fund. 1.0% - 363,806

The Oregon Economic Development Department loan Y04001 in the
original amount of $506,000 was used in the sewer enterprise for
equipment and facilities. The loan matures on December 1, 2024
and is secured by sewer and general revenues. 4.62% " 140,612

2.91%
The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality !oan R94942 in plus

the original amount of $1,200,000 was used in the sewer 0.5%
enterprise for biosolids removal. The loan matures on June 1, annual
2025 and is secured by sewer revenues, fee - 257,870

The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality loan R94945 was
issued in the original amount up to $1,920,304 and was used to 1.45%
make upgrades to the wastewater treatment piant. DEQ forgave plus
$500,000 of the loan during the year ended June 30, 2018. The 0.5%
loan matures on February 1, 2048 and is secured by sewer annual
revenues, fee - 1,270,312
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Purpose
Interest Governmental Business"
Rates Activities Type Activities

The Oregon infrastructure Finance Authority loan V16013 was
issued in the original amount up to $35,000 and was used to
complete an inflow and infiltration reduction study for the
wastewater system. The loan matures on December 1, 2025 and
the City pledges its full faith and credit. 1.69% ^__ $ 25,387

Total notes/loans outstanding
Less current portion

Long-term portion

Loan covenants require the City to establish resen/es as follows:

332
(62

$ 269

,081
,839)

.242

5,740.730
(713.509)

$ 5.027.221

Business-

Type Activities

$ 34,553
28.459

$ 63,012

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality:
Loan R94942
Loan R94945

Total

The reserves are reported as restricted cash on the statement of net position.

Upon the event of default on loans with the Oregon Economic Development Department or Oregon
Infrastructure Finance Authority, the State may pursue any or all of the remedies set forth in the agreement or
available at law or in equity. Such remedies may include, but are not limited to, termination of the contract,
acceleration of the contract, return of the grant/loan funds, payment of amounts earned from the investment of
the proceeds of the loan, declaration of the City's ineljgibiiity to receive future iottery funded awards,
withholding pursuant to ORS 285B.599, ORS 285A.213(6), or OAR 123-049-0040 of other State funds due to
the Borrower, foreclosing liens or security interest and exercising any remedy listed in OAR 123-049-0040.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Governmental Activities _B us i n ess-TypeActivitfes

Year Ending

June 30,

GO Bonds Direct Borrowings Direct Borrowings

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

2027 - 2031
2032 - 2036
2037 - 2041
2042 " 2046
2047 - 2051

Total

472,890
486,895
501,315
516,162
531,449
271,576

91,018
74.614
57,723
40,333
22,427

3,992

360.115
369,596
379,352
389,392
399.723
536,104

61,936
52,454
42,698
32,659
22,326
14,435

713,509
591,873
613,238
407,103
308,684

1.526,053
909,876
292,102
266,274
J12M8

150,142
124,400
103,590
81,853
71,803

260,155
108.069
50,660
25,026
2.601
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F. Pension Plans

Employees of the City are provided with pensions through the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(OPERS) a cost-sharing multiple-emptoyer defined benefit pension plan. The Oregon Legislature has
delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board to administer and manage the system. All
benefits of the System are established by the legislature pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A. Tier
One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit plan, established by ORS Chapter 238, is closed to new members hired on
or after August 29, 2003. The Pension Program, established by ORS Chapter 238A, provides benefits to
members hired on or after August 29, 2003. OPERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation that can be obtained at:

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/sectJon/financ}al_reports/financta{s.aspx

Benefits Provided

1. Tier Onemer Two Retirement Benefit (ORS Chapter 238)

Pension Benefits

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit
options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on
years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, 1.67
percent for general sen/ice employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who
were contributing before August 21 , 1981)or a money match computation if a greater benefit results.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement
allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50
years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire
members). General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are
eligible after reaching age 50. Tier One general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement
occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if
retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for
fuii benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Pian is closed to new members
hired on or after August 29,2003.

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member's
account balance (accumuiated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary wiil receive a lump"
sum payment from employer funds equa! to the account balance, provided one or more of the following
conditions are met:

the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,
the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,
the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or
the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-
connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury
or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the
length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disabitity, sen/ice time is
computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.
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F. Pension Plans, Continued

Benefit Changes

After retirement, members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account
after retiring and may experience annual benefit fiuctuations due to changes in the market value of equity
investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes.
Under current law, the cap on the COLA for creditabie service earned before October 2013 is 2.0 percent.
The COLA for creditable service after October 2013 is calculated at 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of
annual benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60,000.

2. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB)

Pension Benefits.

The Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A) provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29,
2003. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are
calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:

Police and Fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average saiary.
Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit.
To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a
police and tire member for at ieast five years immediately preceding retirement.

General sen/ice: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.
Normal retirement age for genera! service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement
credit.

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the
date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member
reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination
becomes effective.

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be
treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise
have been paid to the deceased member.

Disability Benefits

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled
or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent
of the member's salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.

Benefit Changes After Retirement

Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Under
current law, the cap on the COLA for creditable service earned before October 2013 is 2.0 percent. The
COLA for creditable service after October 2013 is calculated at 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of annual
benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60,000.
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F. Pension Plans, Continued

3. OPSRP IndividuaS Account Program (OPSRP fAP)

Pension Benefits

An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the
rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member,
the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates; the date the member completes 600
hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the
date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member
dies.

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in
his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in
equal installments over a 5", 10~, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution
option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member's account
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired
member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment,

Recordkeepmg

OPERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records.

Contributions:

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarialiy determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other
Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December
31, 2018 actuarial valuation. The rates based on a percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2019.
Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $814,318 excluding amounts to fund employer
specific liabilities. The rates in effect for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were 26.80 percent for Tier
One/Tier Two General Service Member, 26.80 percent for Tier One/Tier Two Police and Fire, 17.62 percent
for OPSRP Pension Program General Services, 22.25 percent for OPSRP Police and Fire members and 6
percent for OPSRP individual Account Program.

Pension Assets, Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021 the City reported a liability of $7,138,327 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 rolled
forward to June 30, 2020. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating entities, actuariaily determined. At June 30, 2020, the City's proportion was 0.03270945 percent,
which was a changed from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019 of 0.02871178 percent.
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For the year ended June 30, 2021 theCity recognized pension expense of $1,636,828. At June 30, 2021,the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Difference between expected and actual experience

Change in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments

Changes in proportionate share

Differences between City contributions and proportionate share of
contributions

Subtotal before post-measurement date contributions

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $645,329 resulting from the City's contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2022. Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources of $1,727,246 will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

$ 314,173

383,091

839,375

469,885

58.065

2,064,589

645,329

$__2.709,918

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

13,423

225,876

98,044

337,343

$ _. 337^43

Year Ended
June 30,

2022 $
2023
2024
2025
2026

Total 1

360.528
481,321
475,918
376,942

32.537

1,727.246
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

The total pension iiability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date

Measurement Date

Experience Study Report

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Discount Rate

Project Salary Increases

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)

Mortaiity

December 31, 2018

June 30, 2020

2018, published July 24. 2019

Entry Age normal

2.50 percent

7.20 percent

7.20 percent

3.50 percent overall payroll growth

Blend of 2.00% COLA and Graded COLA (1.25%/.015%) in
accordance with Moro decision; blend based on service.

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex-
distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Date Scale,
with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation.

Active Members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with Job category
adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled retiree, sex distinct,
generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job
category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
vaiuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and
assumptions shown above are based on the 2018 Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-
year period ending on December 31,2018.

48



CITY OF WARRENTON

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note III" Detailed Notes On All Funds. Continued

F. Pension Plans, Continued

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May
2019 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's capita! market
assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council's (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset class
assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation
assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-
looking capital market economic model. For more information on the Plan's portfolio, assumed asset
allocation, and the iong-term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both
arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS' audited financiai statements at:

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2020-CAFR.pdf

Depletion Date Projection

GASB 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the total pension liability (the
actuarial accrued liability calculated using the individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term
expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan's fiduciary
net position is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa
or higher) municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the fiduciary net position is not projected to
cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate under GAS8 68 will often
require that the actuary perform complex projections of future benefit payments and pension plan investments.
GASB 68 (paragraph 67) does allow for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such evaluation can
reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of
sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for PERS:

• PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarialiy Determined Contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.

• The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC

each year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if future
experience follows assumption.

• GASB 68 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the
assumed rate return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and

assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience which

might impact the plan's funded position.

Based on these circumstances, it is PERS' independent actuary's opinion that the detailed depletion date
projections outlined in GASB 68 would clearly indicate that the fiduciary net position is always projected to be
sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability of the Plan was 7.20 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuan'ally determined. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability caicu!ated using the discount
rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) __ (7.20%) (8.20%)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability $ 10,599,826 $ 7,138,327 $ 4,235,700

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
OPERS financial report.

Note IV - Other Inform ati on

A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial insurance, in 1981,
the League of Oregon Cities joined together with the Association of Oregon Cities to form City County
Insurance Services ("CCIS"), a public entity risk pool currently operating a common risk management and
insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to CCiS for insurance coverage. Based on the
experience of the City and CCIS, the City may be liable for an additional premium of up to 20% of its initial
premium or it may receive a refund. The City has not had to pay an additional premium. Predetermined limits
and deductible amounts are stated in the policy. Settled claims have not exceeded commerciai insurance
coverage in any of the past three years.

B. Contingencies Under Grant Provisions

Under terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned as
not being appropriate expenditures under terms of the grants. Such audits could lead to reimbursement to the
grantor agencies. The City believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

C. Contingent Liabilities

The City is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of its
operations and capital projects. Management intends to contest these matters and does not believe their
ultimate resolution wili have a material effect upon the City's financial position, results of operations. or cash
flows.
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D. Postciosure Landfill Care

The Municipal Solid Waste Landfill ("MSWLF") ceased accepting solid waste in the fall of 1985 and final cover
was applied subsequently in conformity with state regulations. The landfill closure permit for the MSWLF was
renewed by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality on February 20, 1997. State and federal laws
and regulations require the City to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site.

The City has recorded a liability for the estimated costs of iandfilj postclosure care. Annually, the City
evaluates the liability by examining the estimated costs needed to perform the postclosure care over the next
20 years and adjusts the liability accordingly. During the year ended June 30, 2021 the City's estimated
liability changed as follows:

Landfill
postclosure
care liability

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 236,576
Change in estimate 53,792
Maintenance costs paid in 2021 f12,596)

Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 277.772

All current year changes in the liability are included in contracted services in the Sanitation Enterprise Fund.
The estimated future costs to maintain and monitor the landfill may change due to one or more of the following
factors: inflation, deflation, changes in technology or changes to applicable laws or regulations.
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Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) 0.03270945% 0.02871178% 0.03023090% 0.03216011% 0.03340720% 0.03518114% 0.03043630% 0.03043630%

Proportionate share of the net
pension iiabiiity (asset) $ 7,138,327 $ 4,966,450 $ 4,579,583 $ 4,335,195 $ 5,015,196 $ 2,019,912 $ (689,903) $ 1,553,209

Covered payrol! $ 3,397,193 $ 3,370,391 $ 3,172,039 $ 3,074,084 $ 3,036,331 $ 2,744,201 $ 2,594,589 $ 2,468,918

Proportionate share of the
pension iiabiiity (asset) as
a percentage of its
covered employee payroll 210.12% 147.36% 144.37% 141.02% 165.17% 73.61% (26.59)% 62.91%

Plan net position as a
percentage of the total
pension [jabi!ity 75.8% 80.2% 82.1% 83.1% 80.5% 91.9% 103.6% 92.0%

Schedule of Pension Contributions

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required
contribution $ 814,318 $ 856,834 $ 728,293 $ 650,268 $ 557,802 $ 545,611 $ 475,054 $ 448,503

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required
contribution 814.318 856.834 728,293 650.268 557,802 545.611 475.054 448.503

Contribution deficiency
(excess)

Covered empioyee payrol! $ 3,342,216 $ 3,397,193 $ 3,370,391 $ 3,172,039 $ 3,074,084 $ 3,036,331 $ 2,744,201 $ 2,594,589

Contributions as a percentage
of covered employee
payroll 24.36% 25.22% 21.61% 20.50% 18.15% 17.97% 17.31% 17.29%
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Note I - Measurement Period

Amounts presented are for the measurement period, which for FY 2021 is July 1, 2019" June 30,2020.

Note I! - Chancies in Benefit Terms

The 2013 Oregon Legislature made a series of changes to PERS that lowered projected future benefit
payments from the System. These changes included reductions to future Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)
made through Senate Bills 822 and 861. Senate Bill 822 also required the contribution rates scheduled to be in
effect from Juiy 2013 to June 2015 to be reduced. The Oregon Supreme Court decision in IVIoro v. State of
Oregon, issued on April 30, 2015, reversed a significant portion of the reductions the 2013 Oregon Legislature
made to future System Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) through Senate Bills 822 and 861. This reversal
increased the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015 compared to June 30, 2014 total pension liability.

Note 111 - Channesjn Assumptions

The PERS Board adopted assumption changes that were used to measure the June 30, 2016 total pension
liability and June 30, 2018 total pension liability. For June 30, 2016, the changes included the lowering of the
long-term expected rate of return to 7.50 percent and lowering of the assumed inflation to 2.50 percent. For
June 30, 2018, the long-term expected rate of return was lowered to 7.20 percent. !n addition, the healthy
mortality assumption was changed to reflect an updated mortality improvement scale for all groups, and
assumptions were updated for merit increases, unused sick leave, and vacation pay were updated.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES





CITYOFWARRENTON

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

Special Capital
Revenue Debt Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
intergovernmental
Grants
Other

Total assets

$ 1,268,260 $

10,903
88,022

15.994

2,674,363

72,039

1,357 193

15.200

Total

$ 1,750,389 $ 5,693,012

82,942
88,022

1,550
15,994
15.200

5.896.720

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Debt service
Library and culture
Public works
Urban renewal improvements
Building inspection program
System development

Committed to:
Library and culture
Grant expenditures

Assigned to:
Capital projects

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

$ 117,493 3
192

15.157
132.842

7.415

162,709
157,245

847,148

70,196
5,624

1,242.922

$ 1,383,179 ^

)

_48

2,698

2.698

> 2747

^

.762

,997

.997

,759 |

; 17.

17.

13,

1,253,

482.

1748.

I 1.765,

181 3

181

175

120

306

601

782 ^

i

2

1

5

5 5

134,674
192

15.157
150.023

56.177

,698,997
162,709
157,245

13.175
847,148
,253,120

70,196
5,624

482.306

.690,520

.896.720
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Donations
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Fire and emergency medical services
Police
Planning and development
Library and culture

Debt ser/ice:
Principal retirement
interest expense

Capital outlay

Tota! expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital contributions

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year
End of year

Special
Revenue

Funds

$ 492,281
350,982
121,800

7.974
311

9,336
56,142

4,390

1.043.216

315,522
16,647
4,652

407,274
248,266

10,125_

1,002.486

40,730

10,000
(50,000)

(40.000)

Debt Service
Funds

$ 1,389,686 5

21,570

1,411,256_

749,041
167,224

.M6,265_

_494.991

(152,114)

(152.114)

Capital
Projects
Funds

265

12,518

60.030

72.813

68,408

106.984

175.392

(102.579)

262,292

168.317

430.609

Total

1,881,967
350,982
122.065

7,974
311

43,424
56,142
64,420

2.527,285

383,930
16,647
4,652

407.274
248,266

749,041
167,224
117.109

2.094.143

433,142

272,292
(202.114)
168,317

238.495

730

1,242.192

342,877

2,356J20_

328,030

1.420.571

671.637

5.018.883
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues derived from specific tax or other earmarked revenue sources,
including federal and state grant awards, which are restricted to finance particular functions or activities. Funds
included in this fund category are:

Community Center Fund - Accounts for the operational activities of the Community Center.

Warrenton Business License Fund" Accounts for revenues from the sale of business licenses. The goal of
the WBL fund is to enhance the economy and livability within the City by providing funds for programs and
projects such as nuisance abatement, beautification of the City, grants to Main Street programs for funding
events, festivals and projects, assisting with public safety programs and equipment purchases, and other
similar tasks and projects as recommended and approved by City Commission.

Grant Fund - Accounts for grants received from a variety of sources.

Library Fund - Accounts for the operational activity of the library.

Building Department Fund - Accounts for the activities of the Building Division, which is responsible for the
enforcement of buiiding, plumbing, mechanical, fire and life safety codes of the State of Oregon.

Transient Room Tax Fund - Accounts for transient room tax to be expended on police, first response
medical assistance and infrastructure usage by tourists and other short term visitors, as well as to provide
funds for tourist promotion.

Quincy Robinson Park Trust Fund - Accounts for the estabiishment and maintenance of public parks.



CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Speciaf Revenues Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
Grants

Total assets

Warrenton
Community Business
Center (005) License (006) Grant (015) Library (020)

$ 18,054 $ 54,174 $ 10.219 $ 161,871

10,903

15.994 __
$ 18,054 $ 54.174

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Library and cuiture
Public works
Building inspection program

Committed to;
Library and culture
Grant expenditures

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources and
fund balances

1,105 $
192

735 $

1.297

16,757

16.757

735

53,439

53,439

5,432

15.157
20.589

5.624

5.624

2,650

2.650

7,415

162,709

162,709
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Building
Department

(021)

Transient
Room Tax

(024)

Quincy
Robinson
Park Trust

(065)

Total
Non major

Special
Revenues

Funds

$ 862,186 $ 3.504 $ 158,252 $ 1.268,260

88,022
10,903
88,022
15.994

1,383.179

15,038 $ 91,526 $

15,038 91.526

1,007 $

_1.QQ7

117,493
192

15.157
_132,842

7.415

847,148

847,148

157,245

157.245

162,709
157,245
847,148

70,196
5.624

1.242.922

1.383.179

57



CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Special Revenues Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Donations
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Fire and emergency medical

services
Police
Planning and development
Library and culture

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year
End of year

Community
Center (005)

$

302
7,974

197
4,804

14

13,291

Warrenton
Business

License (006)

60,660

663
30

61,353_

Grant (015)

120,421

120.421

Library (Q2Q)_

$ 226,759

272

311
1,093
5,809
4.145

238.389

14.773

14.773

29,319

29.319

50,000

16.647
4,652

58,680

129.979

204,174

204.174

(1,482)

(1,482)

18,239

32,034

{5Q.oocn

(17,966)

71.405

(9,558)

10.000

442

5.182

34,215

34,215

128.494
16,757_ i_ 53.439_ 162.709
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Building
Department

(021)

$
290,322

805

6,380

231

297.738

Transient Room
Tax (024)

$ 265,522

265.522

Quincy
Robinson Park

Trust (065)

1,003
45,499

_A6,5Q2

Total Nonmajor
Special

Revenues
Funds

$ 492,281
350,982
121,800

7,974
311

9,336
56,142
4.390

_LQ43.216

348,594

265,522

10.125

315,522

16,647
4,652

407,274
248.266

10,125

348.594 265.522 _^OJ25 _1,Q02,486

(50,856) 36,377 40,730

10,000
^50.000)

(50,856)

_898,OQ4

36,377

120.868

730

1.242.192
847.148 ^ 157.245 $ 1.242.922
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Community Center Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
investment earnings
Donations
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 16,000

13.400
160

3,000

$ 32,560_

Final Budget

$ 16,000 $

13.400
160

3,000

$ 32,560_

Actual

; 18,239 ;
302

7.974
197

4.804
14

31,530_ :

Variance

^ 2,239
302

(5,426)
37

1,804
14

$ n.030)

Requirements;
Community Center:

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 8,148 $
15.971

24,119
1.000 _

25,119

7.441

32,560

8,148 $
15.971

24,119
1.QQO__

25,119

7,441

32.560

5,236 $
9.537

14,773

14,773

16.757

31.530

2,912
6,434_

9,346
1,000

10,346

^9.316^

1.030
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Warrenton Business License Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Licenses and permits
investment earnings
Donations

Total resources

Requirements:
WBL Program:

Persona! services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Ongina!
Budget

$ 78,000
59,000

800

^37,800

Final Budget

$ 78,000 ^
59,000

800

$ 137.800 ^

Actual

> 71.405 ;
60.660

663
30

i 132,758 :

Variance

$ (6,595)
1,660
(137)

30

$ (5.042^

6,838
71.508

6,838
71.508

6,063
23.256

775
48.252

78,346
5.000

50,000

133,346

A454

78,346
5,000

50.000

133,346

4.454

29,319

50.000

79,319

53.439

49,027
5,000

54,027

f48.985)

$ 137,800 $ 1 37,800 $ 132,758 $ 5,042
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Grant Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Donations
Transfers in

Total resources

Requirements:
Police Department
Fire Department
Community Development
Admin Department

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Original
Budget

$ 5,777
100.000

3,300
10.000

$ 119.077

$ 26,209
20,000
70,000

116,209

2.868

$ 119.07L

Final Budget

$ 5,777 ^
150,000

3.300
10.000

$ 169.077

$ 26,209 3
20.000
70,000
50.000

166,209

2.868

$ 169.077 1

Actual

; 5,182 ;
120,421

10.QQQ

135.603

i 4,652 ;
16,647
58,680
50.000

129,979

5,624

i 135.603

Variance

$ (595)
(29,579)

(3,300)

{33A74}

$ 21,557
3,353

11,320

36,230

f2.756)

$ 33.474
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Library Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:

Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Donations
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 111.000
207,834

250
1,000

13.868
J2.95Q

_336,9Q2

Final Budget

$ 111,000 3
207,834

250
1,000

13,868
J.95Q

_136.9Q2

Actual

; 128,494 ;
226,759

272
311

1,093
5,809

A145

_366,883 :

Variance

$ 17,494
18,925

272
61
93

(8,059)
1,195

$ 29,981

Requirements:
Library:

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 144,951 $
87.119

232,070
23.000

255,070

_81,832

336.902

144,951 $
87.119

232,070
23.000

255,070

_81,832

A36.9Q2

129,294 $
74.880

204,174

204,174

^62,709

_366,883 $

15,657
12.239

27,896
23,000

50,896

(Q0.677}

^29.981)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Building Department Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 790,000
470,000

4,000

$ 1.264,000

Final Budget

$ 790,000 3
470,000

4,000

$ 1,264.000 ^

Actual

; 898.004 ;
290,322

805
6,380

231

i 1,195,742 ;

Variance

? 108,004
(179,678)

805
2,380

231

£ ?8,258^

Requirements:
Building Department:

Persona! services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 280,291 $
43.884

324,175
168.000

492,175

771.825

280,291 $
103.884

384,175
108.000

492,175

771.825

274,351 $
74,243_

348,594

348,594

847,148_

5,940
29.641

35,581
108.000

143.581

(75,323}

$ 1.264.000 $ 1.264,000 $ 1.195.742
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Transient Room Tax Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes

Total resources

Original
Budget

$
318.000

$ 318.000

Final Budget

318.000

$ 318.000 ^

Actual

265,522

> 265.522 :

Variance

$
?2.478^

$ (52.478)

Requirements:
Transient Room Tax Program:

Materials and services

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 318,000 $ 318,000 $ 265,522 $ 52.478

$ 318.000 ^_318,QOO_ _$ 265.522 $ 52.478
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Quincy Robinson Park Trust Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Donations

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

123,500 $
500

45,OOQ_

123,500
500

45.000

120,868
1.003

45,499_

(2,632)
503
499

Requirements:
Parks Department:

Capita) outlay

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

97,000 $

72.000

97.000

72.000

10,125

157.245

86,875

(85.245)
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NONIVfAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Se/vice Funds account for the accumulation of resources for and payment of general long-term debt
principal and interest. Funds included in this category are:

Wastewater Treatment GO Bond Fund - Accounts for the payment of principal and interest on the general
obligation bonds approved by voters on November 7, 2006 for the construction of the wastewater treatment
facility.

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Debt Service Fund - Accounts for the payment of principal and interest
on the debt related to improvements of the downtown area funded through the Warrenton Urban Renewal
Agency.

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Debt Reserve Fund " Accounts for funds set aside for the payment of
principal and interest on the debt related to improvements of the downtown area funded through the
Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency.





ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes
Intergovernmental

Total assets

CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

Warrenton Urban
Wastewater Renewal Agency

Treatment GO Debt Service
Bond (059) (300)

$ 96,262 $ 2,228,084

30,703 41,336
1,357

$ 126.965 $ 2.270.777

Warrenton Urban
Renewal Agency

Debt Reserve
(400)

$ 350,017

$ 350.017

Total Nonmajor
Debt Service

Fund

$ 2,674,363

72,039
1.357

$ 2.747.759

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

$ 20,798 $ 27,964 $
Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances:
Restricted for

Debt service 106.167 2.242.813 350.017

48,762

2.698.997

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund
balances $ 126.965 $ 2.270.777 $ 350,017 $ 2.747.759
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Warrenton Urban Warrenton Urban
Wastewater Renewal Agency Renewal Agency

Treatment GO Debt Service Debt Resen/e
Bond (059) (300) (400)

Total Nonrrsajor
Special

Revenues Funds

Revenues:
Taxes $
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest expense

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year
End of year |L

579,674 $
1.812

581.486

459,287
106.951

566.238

15,248

15,248

90.919
106.167 ^_

810.012 $
19.758

829.770

289,754
60,273

350.027

479,743

n 52.114^

327,629

1.915.184
2.242.813 1.

350.017
350.017 1.

1,389,686
21.570

1.411.256

749,041
167.224

916.265

494,991

(152.114^

342,877

_2,356,12Q_

2.698,997
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C1TYOFWARRENTON

Wastewafer Treatment GO Bond Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Investment earnings

Total resources

Requirements:
Debt service
Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Original
Budget

$ 55,000
555,037

1.500

611.537

$ 566.238
45.299

$ 611,537

Final Budget

$ 55,000 $
555,037

1,500

$ 611.537 ^

$ 566,238 ^
45299

$ 611,537

Actual

; 90,919 ;
579,674

1,812

; 672.405 :

; 566,238
106,167_

672.405

Variance

$ 35.919
24,637

312

$ 60.868

$
(60,868)

f60.868)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Investment earnings

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

,816,

793,
22,

561 3
935
000

> 1 ,818,

793,
22.

561 3
935
000

i 1 ,915
810
J9

,184 $
.012
,758

96,623
16,077
{2.242}

Requirements:
Debt service
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

550,017
1,700.000

2.250,017

^84,479

550,017
1.700.000

2,250,017

384.479

350,027
152.114

502,141

2,242.813

199,990
1,54L886_

1,747,876

(1,858,3341

2.634.496 $ 2.744.954 $ f110.458)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Debt Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Transfers in

Total resources

Requirements:
Debt service
Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Original
Budget

$ 350,017
200,000

$ 550.017

$ 550,017

$ 550.017

Final Budget

$ 350,017 ^
200.000

$ 550.017 3

$ 550,017 ^

_$ 550,017 |

Actual

; 350,017 :

L 350.017 .

i
350.017

i 350.017

Variance

$
^200.000)

$ f200.000)

$ 550,017
f350,017)

$ 200,000
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capita! facilities. Funds

included in this category are:

Parks System Development Charges Fund - Accounts for fees on new construction that are used for capital
projects and improvements made necessary by the increased usage of infrastructure caused by development
within the community.

Community Center Capita! Resen/e Fund ~ Accumulates resources from the operational surplus of the
Community Center Fund for the financing of services, projects, property, and equipment purchases.

Facilities Maintenance Fund - Accumulates money for financing the costs of major maintenance and capital
improvements of the Municipal Building, Head Start Building, and Park Facilities.

Streets System Development Charges Fund - Accounts for fees on new construction that are used for
capita! projects and improvements made necessary by the increased usage of infrastructure caused by
development within the community.

Police Vehicle Replacement Fund - Accumulates money for financing the costs of police vehicles.

Fire Apparatus Replacement Fund - Accumulates money for financing the costs of fire apparatus.

Tansy Point Dock Capital Reser/e Fund - Accumulates money for financing the costs of major maintenance
and capital improvements to the Tansy Point Dock.

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for the property tax revenue collected
and improvements to the downtown area completed through the Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency.



CITYOFWARRENTON

Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

intergovernmenta!
Other

Total assets

Streets
Parks System Community Facilities System
Development Center Capital Maintenance Development
Charges (003) Reserve (OQ4)_ (035)__ Charges (041^

$ 180,433 $ 7,587 $ 88,395 $ 1,072,687

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Fund Balances:
Restricted for

Urban renewal
improvements

System development
Assigned to:

Capital projects

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources and
fund balances

180,433

1.757 1.

1,072,687

180.433

$ 180.433 ^_

7.587

7.587

7,587_ $

86.638

86,638

88,395 ^

A

i 1

.072.687

.072.687
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Warren ton
Urban

Fire Renewal Total
Police Vehicle Apparatus Tansy Point Agency Nonmajor
Replacement Replacement Dock Capital Capita! Capital

(070) (071) Reserve (072) Projects (200) Projects Fund

$ 67,418 $ 113,655 $ 191,808 $ 28,406 $ 1,750,389

67.418 I

^__ ^

15.200

128.855 1

^

191.808 ^.

1.

193

28.599 3

_15,424 3

193
15.200

> 1.765.782

i 17.181

13,175 13,175

1,253,120

67,418

67.418

$ 67,418 £.

128,855

128.855

128,855 1

_191,808

191.808

191,808 3L

13.175

28.599 ^

482,306

1.748.601

i 1.765.782
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Capita! Projects Fund

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures'.
Current:

General government
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Parks System
Development
Charges (003)

1,380

1.380

Community
Center Capital
Reserve (0041

Facilities
Maintenance

(035)

$ 265
529

794

16,430

16.430

Streets
System

Development
Charges (041)

$
8,250

8.250

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Capital contributions

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year
End of year

1,380

13.148

14,528

165.905

(15,636)

40,000

7.587

24,364

62.274

8,250

155.169

163,419

909.268
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Police Vehicle
Replacement

(070)

Fire
Apparatus

Replacement
(071)

Tansy Point
Dock Capital

Warrenton
Urban

Renewal
Agency
Capital

Tota!
Nonmajor

Capital
Reserve (072) Projects (200) Projects Fund

$ - $
294

294

294

45.000

45,294

22.124

555
59,562

60.117

60,117

5,000

65,117

63.738

1,419

1,419

1,419

20,178

21,597

170.211

$
91

468

559

51,978
106,984

158.962

(158,403)

152,114

(6,289)

19.464

265
12,518
60.030

72,813

68,408
106.984

175.392

(102,579)

262,292
168.317

328,030

1,420.571
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Parks System Development Charges Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Capital contributions

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

156,700
1,000

22.000

156,700
1,000

22.000

165,905
1,380

13.148

9,205
380

f8.852)

Requirements:

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 179.700 $ 179.700 $ 180.433 i. (733}
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Community Center Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources
Beginning fund balance

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

7.587 1. 7.587 1 7,587 $

7.587

Requirements:
Community Center:

Materials and services

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

7,587 $ 7.587 $

7.587

7,587

f7.587)

7.587 1.
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Facilities Maintenance Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Transfers in

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

$ 56,000 $

500
40.000

56,000 $

500
40.000

62,274
265
529

4Q,QOO_

6,274
265

29

Requirements:
Facilities Maintenance:

Materials and services
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Totai requirements

41,095 $
55.405

41,095
55A05_

96,500 96,500

16,430 $

16.430

86.638

24,665
55.405

80.070

?6.638)

(6.568)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Streets System Development Charges Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Capital contributions

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

893,000
6,000

150.000

893,000
6,000

150,000

909,268
8,250

155.169

16,268
2,250
5.169

Requirements:

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 1,049,000 $__ 1,049^00 $_1,072,687_ .$_[23,6871

$ 1.049,000 $ 1.049,000
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Police Vehicle Replacement Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
investment earnings
Transfers in

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

22,000 $

45.000

22,000

_45,QQQ_

22,124
294

45.000

124
294

418_

Requirements:
Police Department:

Capita! outlay

Ending fund balance

57,000 $

10.000

57,000

10.0QO_ 67.418

57,000

?7.418^

Total requirements (418)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Fire Apparatus Replacement Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmentai
Investment earnings
Other revenue
Transfers in

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

63,750
593,750

500

5.000

63,750
593.750

500

5,000

63,738

555
59,562

5.000

(12)
(593,750)

55
59,562

Requirements:
Fire Department:

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

625,000 $

38.000

625,000

38.000 128.855

625,000

f90.855)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Tansy Point Dock Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Transfers in

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual

169,843 $
1,500

20.178

169,843
1,500

20.178

170,211
1,419

20.178

Variance

368
(81)

Requirements:
Administration:

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 191,521 $ 191,521 $
191.808

191,521

n91.808^
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency Capital Projects Fund

Statement of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Other revenue
Transfers in
Loan proceeds

Total resources

Requirements:
Materials and services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Originai
Budget Final Budget Actual

25,288 $ 25,288 $ 19,464
91

468

Variance

(5,824)
91

468
1,500,000
4,907.433

$ 6,432,721 3

$ 124,000 3
6.308.721

6,432,721

1
A

L_6

_6

6

,500
.907

,432

124
,308

,432

,000
,433

,721 ^

,000 $
.721

,721

152

172

51
106
158

_[3

,114

,137

,978 ;
,984

,962

.175

(1,347,
M.907.

r6.260.

? 72,
6,201,

6,273,

M3.

886)
433)

584)

022
737
759

1751

$ 6,432,721 $ 6.432.721
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent is that the costs of providing services are financed or recovered primarily
through user charges. Funds included in this category are:

Water Operating Fund ~ Accounts for the operation, maintenance, and improvements of the water treatment,
transmission and distribution systems.

Water System Development - Accounts for fees on new construction that are used for capital projects and
improvements made necessary by the increased usage of infrastructure caused by development.

Water Capital Reserve Fund - Accumulates money for major maintenance and capital improvement projects.

Sewer Operating Fund - Accounts for the operation, maintenance, and improvements of the sewer system.

Sewer System Development Fund - Accounts for fees on new construction that are used for capita! projects
and improvements made necessary by the increased usage of infrastructure caused by development.

Sewer Capita! Reserve Fund - Accumulates money for major maintenance and capital improvement

projects.

Storm Sewer Operating Fund - Accounts for the storm sewer surcharge on all sewer bills and is used to
expand and improve storm drainage systems.

Storm System Development Charges Fund - Accounts for fees on new construction that are used for
capital projects and improvements made necessary by the increased usage of infrastructure caused by
development within the community.

Sanitation Operating Fund - Accounts for the operations of the residentiai and commercial trash coilection
unit.

Sanitation Capital Reserve Fund - Accumulates money for major maintenance and capital improvement
projects.

Warrenton Marina Fund - Accounts for the operation, maintenance and improvements of the Marina.

Warrenton Marina Capital Reser/e Fund - Accumuiates money for major maintenance and capital
improvement projects.

Hammond Marina Fund - Accounts for the operation, maintenance and improvements of the Marina.

Hammond Marina Capita! Reserve Fund - Accumulates money for major maintenance and capital
improvement projects.





ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets
Deprecjable assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions

CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Enterprise

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

System
Operating Deveiopment
(025) (026)

$ 2,784.980 $ 154,811
376,042
236,412

885

Capital
Reserve (029)

$ 3,669,309

Total Water
Enterprise

$ 6,609,100
376,042
236,412

885
3.398.319 154.811 3,669.309 7,222,439

360,140
13,231.591
13.591.731

16.990.050

378.306

154,811 _3.669,309

360,140
13.231.591
13.591.731

20.814.170

378,306

LIABILITIES
Current liabifities:

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Loans payable" current

Total current iiabiiities

Noncurrent iiabilities:
Loans payable
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

61,644
64,127
34,000

_575,337
735,108

3,471.212
_996,510

5.202.830

6,132

6,132

67,776
64,127
34,000

575,337
741,240

3,471,212
996.510

6.132 5.208.962

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions 47.093 47.093

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for system development
Unrestricted

Total net position

9,545,182

2.573.251

$ 12.118.433

154,811
3.663.177

9.545,182
154,811

6.236.428

15.936.421
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Enterprise

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Payroli and payroll benefits
Contracted services
Utilities and telephone
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Overhead cost allocation
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capital contributions
Capita! transfers, net
Debt transfers, net
Net transfers within enterprise

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year
End of year

Operating
(025)

$ 3,990,439
5.116

3.995.555

916,811
134,757
110,455
223.915
230,023
109,565
651.965

2.377.491

1.618.064

42,100
2,855

(119.139^
f74.184)

1,543,880

164,401
58.000

(1.560.000)

206,281

11.912.152
$ 12.118.433

System
Development

(026)

972

972

972

120,044

(58.000)

63,016

91.795
$ 154,811

Capital
Reserve (029)

(164,401)

1,56Q,00_Q_

1,395,599

2.267.578
3.663.177

Total Water
Enterprise

$ 3,990,439
5.116

3,995<555,

916,811
134.757
110,455
223.915
230.023
109,565
651.965

2.377.491

1.618.064

43,072
2,855

f n 9. m
f73.212^

1,544.852

120,044

1.664,896

14.271.525
15.936.421
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Enterprise

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Payments for Interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental operating grants received
Transfers within enterprise, net

Net cash provided by (used In) noncapltal financing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing
activities

Operating
(025)

$ 4,002,528
(699,149)
(679,022)
f274.668)

2.349.689

TIVITIES
2,855

(1,560,000)

(1.557.145)

System
Development

(026)
Capital

Reserve (029)

1.560.000

1.560.000

Total Water
Enterprise

$ 4,002,528
(699,149)
(679,022)

_(274,668)

2.349.689

2,855

2.855

(8,415)
(499,940)
(131.022^

{G3Q.377}

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

_42,1QO

195,267

2.589.713

122,244

(58,000)
(161,331)

64^44 ^161.3311

972

65,216

89,595

1,398,669

2,270.640

122,244
(169,746)
(557,940)
ft 31.022^

(736.4Q4}

43.072

1,659,152

4,949.948

Continued on next page
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Enterprise

Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

System
Operating Development Capita! Total Water

(025) (026) Reserve (029) Enterprise

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension adjustments
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences

$ 1,618,064 $

651,965
72,784

7,003
2,893

787

(3.709)
_£981

$ 1.618,064

651.965
72,784

7,003
2,893

787

(3,709)
(Q8}

Net cash provided by (used En) operating
activities $ 2.349.689

Schedule of noncash transactions:

Capita! assets transferred between funds

Debt principal payments transferred between funds

87



CITYOFWARRENTON

Sewer Enterprise

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Operating
(030)

$ 2,761,227
287,608

2,575
84,401

734
^136,545

System
Development

(036)

$ 112,894

_112,894

Capital
Reserve

(038)

$4,007,273

4,007,273

Storm (028)

$1,463,177
54,492

3,736
84

1,521,489

Storm
System

Development
Charges

(051)

$ 83,969

83.969

Total Sewer
Enterprise

$ 8,428,540
342,100

2,575
88,137

818
8,862.170

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash
Capital assets:

Nondepreciabie assets
Depreciabie assets, net

Totai noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions

63,012 63,012

106,155
8.926.636
9,095,803

12,232.348

JRCES
_360,962

112,894 4,007,273

29,152
497,972

.527,124

2,048,613

30.622

83,969

135,307
9.424.608

_9^22,927

18,485.097

391,584_

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Loans payable - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Loans payable
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

87,992
12,339
42,057

785
138.172
281,345

1,556,009
_95Q,825

33,147 47,622

4,734

33,147 52.356

_80.663

168,761
12,339
46,791

785
138.172
366,848

1,556,009
1,031.488

2,788.179 33,147 133.019 2.954.345

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions 44.934 3,812 48,746

NET POSITION
Net investment in capita! assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for system development
Unrestricted

7,338,610
63,012

2,358.575
112,894

_3,974,126

527,124 - 7,865,734
63,012

83,969 196,863
1,415.280 _^ 7.747.981

Total net position



CITY OF WARRENTON

Sewer Enterprise

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

System Capita!

Storm
System

Development
Operating

(030)

$ 2,837,138
13.966

2.851.104

Development
(036)

Reserve
(038)

$

Storm (028)_

$ 505,230
970

506,200

Charges
(051)

$

Total Sewer
Enterprise

$ 3,342,368
14.936

3,357.304

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and payroll benefits
Contracted services
Utilities and telephone
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Overhead cost allocation
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

1,006,593
137,883
156,934
209,412
192,355
109,444
707.767

2.520.388

83,484
36,534
10,401
50,335

3,403
12,514
50,747

247.418

1,090,077
174,417
167,335
259,747
195,758
121,958
758.514

2.767.806

330.716 258.782 _589,498_

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capital contributions
Capital transfers, net
Net transfers within enterprise

47,545
2,883

(42.723}

7.705

338,421

141,443
C582.017)

684

684_

684

59.022

9,218
312

9.530

268,312

(141,443)
582.017

575

575

575

26,092

58,022
3,195

f42723)

18.494

607,992

85,114

Change in net position

Net Position;
Beginning of year
End of year

(102,153)

9.862.350

59,706

53.188

440,574 268,312

_^533.552_ 1.674,092

26,667 693,106

57,302 _15J80,484_
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Sewer Enterprise

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating

Operating
(030)

VITIES

$2,848,955
(690,881)
(708,552)
^274.365)

System
Development

_(036)

Capita!
Reserve

(038)
Storm

_..(028)

$ 501,893
(66,998)
(84,215)
(31.371)

Storm
System

Development
Charges

(051)

$

Total Sewer
Enterprise

$3,350,848
(757,879)
(792,767)
C305.736)

1,175.157 319,309. 1,494.466

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmenta! operating grants
received 2,883

Transfers within enterprise, net _ {582,017)

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities _ (579,1341

582.017
312

582.017 312

3,195

3.195

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions - 59,022 - - 26,092 85,114
Acquisition and construction of capital
assets (41,636) - (109,276) (5,325) - (156,237)

Principal paid on debt (134,328) - - - „ (134,328)

Interest paid on debt M3.9941 __ __ _„_ __ M3.9941
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities {219.958^ 59,022 (109,276) ,5,325^ 26,092 (249.4451

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest and dividends received _.47,5-'15 684 9,218 575 58.022

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

423.610 59.706 472,741 323,514

2,400.629 53.188 3,534.532 1.139,663

26,667 1,306,238

57,302 _7J85,314

Cash and cash equivalents are reported on the Statement of Net Position as follows:

112,894 $4,007,273Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

$2,761,227 $
63.012.

1,463,177 $ 83,969 $8,428,540
63.012

Continued on next page
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Sewer Enterprise

Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating
(030)

System
Development

(036)

Capital
Reserve

(038)
Storm
(028)

Storm
System

Development
Charges

(051)
Total Sewer
Enterprise

Reconciliation of operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities;

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension adjustments
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences

$ 330,716 $

707,767
130,202

(2,128)
25,552

721

(20,591)
2.918

$ 258,782 $

50,747
(20,541)

(4,305)
27
85

33,561
953_

$ 589,498

758,514
109,661

(6,433)
25,579

806

12,970
3.871

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Schedule of noncash transactions:

Capital assets transferred between
funds $ 141.443 i.
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Sanitation Enterprise

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets
Depreciabie assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Landfill postcfosure care - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Landfill postdosure care liabiiity
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Operating
(032)

$ 400,857
118,928
21,561

393
541,739

29,669
570.555
600.224

1.141.963

122.490

91,389
7,860

11.650
110.899

266.122
322,652

699,673

15.249

600,224
^50.693)

$ 549.531

Capital
Resen/e(034)

$ 254.491

254.491

254.491

254.491

254,491

Total
Sanitation
Enterprise

$ 655,348
118,928
21,561

_393

796,230

29,669
570.555
600,224

1.396,454

122.490

91,389
7.860

11.650
110,899

266,122
322.652

699.673

15,249

600.224
203.798

804.022
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Sanitation Enterprise

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating Revenues;
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and payroll benefits
Contracted services
Utilities and telephone
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Overhead cost allocation
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capital transfers, net
Net transfers within enterprise

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year
End of year

Operating Capital
(032) Reserve (034)

$ 1,204,697 $ - ;

2.875 _-_
1,2Q7.572_ _-_

341,720
728,253

7,215
40,749
89,977
31,184

100.146 __
1,339.244 __
fl 31.672) __

4,476

886 __
5,362. __._~_

(126,310)

10,820 (10,820)
{66.8451 66.845

Total
Sanitation
Enterprise

? 1,204,697
2.875

1.207.572

341,720
728,253

7,215
40,749
89,977
31,184

100,146
1.339.244

C\ 31.672^

4,476
886

5,362

(126,310)

(182,335)

731.866

56,025

198,466_

(126,310)

930.332
254.491 $ 804.022
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Sanitation Enterprise

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental operating grants received
Transfers within enterprise, net

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

Operating
(032)

$ 1,208,582
(806,750)
(226,030)

F78.174)

97.628

886
f66.845)

(65,959^

HES
(287}

4.476

Capital
Reserve (034)

66,845

66.845

(37Q.544}

Total
Sanitation
Enterprise

$ 1,208,582
(806,750)
(226,030)
m 174^
97.628

886

886

f379.831)

4.476

35,858

364.999

(312,699)

567,190

(276,841)

932,189
$ 400.857 $ 254.491 $ 655.348

Continued on next page
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Sanitation Enterprise

Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Total
Operating Capital Sanitation

(032) Reserve (034) Enterprise

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (131,672) $ - $ (131,672)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension adjustments
(increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables
Inventory, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Landfill postclosure care liability

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 97,628 $ $ 97,628

Schedule of noncash transactions:

Capital assets transferred between funds $ (10.820^ $ 10.820 ^

100,1
68.'

u
3,'

14,

41.

146
,127

,019
,178
210

,851
573
,196

$ ^^^^^^^ ^

100,
68,

1,

3,

14.

41

146
,127

,019
,178
210

,851
573
,196
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets;
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions

Warrenton
Marina (010)

Warrenton
Marina Capital
Reserve (012)

Hammond
Marina (011)

Hammond
Marina Capital
Reserve (013)

278,469 $
15,944

294,413

402,175 $ 250,989 $
1,470

402.175 252,459

667,338

_66,295

733,633

Total
Non major
Enterprise

Funds

1,598,971
17,414
66.295

1,682,680

74,778
165.185
239.963

534.376

JRCES
127.366

402.175

A
_[

.2

718,972
.150.648
A69,620

.122.079

91.866

733.633

793,750
1.315.833
2.109.583

3,792,263

..219.232

UABILITIES
Current liabiiities:

Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

9,783
19,668
18.519
47.970

335.501

383.471

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
related to pensions 15.855

7,887
10,544
5,219

23,650

241.989

_265,639

11,436

62,775

62,775

62.775

80,445
30,212
23,738

134,395

577.490

711.885

27.291

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

239,963
22.453 402.175

1,869,620
67.250 670,858

402.175 $ 1.936.870 $ 670.858

2,109,583
1,162,736
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Lease receipts
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and payroll benefits
Contracted services
Utilities and telephone
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Overhead cost allocation
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (!oss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
investment earnings
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capital transfers, net
Net transfers within enterprise

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year
End of year

Warrenton
Marina (010)

$ 577,695
29.372

2.980
610.047

366,756
10,306
91,154
43,657
23,732
27,643
47.889

611.137

ft ,090)

7,114

4.067

11.181

10,091

(20.0QO}

(9,909)

272.325
® 262,416_

Warrenton
Marina Capital
Reserve (012)

20.000

20,000

382.175
$ 402,175

Hammond
Marina(011l

$ 313,564
13,417
3.462

330,443

219,842
9.739

29,670
34,465
22,691
14,807
58.635

389.849

f59.406^

8,666

2.831

11.497

(47,909)

455,999

408,090

1.528780
$ 1,936.870

Hammond
Marina Capital
Reserve (013)

160,903
36.257

197.160

197,160

(455,999)

(258.839)

929,697
670.858

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

$ 891,259
42,789

6.442
940,490,

586,598
20,045

120.824
78,122
46,423
42,450

106.524
1.000,986

f60.496)

15,780
160,903
43,155

219.838

159,342

159,342

3.112.977
$ 3.272.319
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Warrenton
Marina (010)

Warrenton
Marina Capital
Reserve (012)

Hammond
_Madna(011)

Hammond
Marina Capital
Reserve (013)

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and

contractors
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating

$ 625,480 $

(165,491)
(267,173)
?9.298)

123.518

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental operating grants
received

Taxes collected
Transfers within enterprise, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental capital grants

received
Acquisition and construction of

capital assets

Net cash used in capital and
reiated financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received _7,114

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year

114,699

$ 337,015 $

(91,328)
(149,678)

f37.120)

$ 962,495

(256,819)
(416,851)

_[106,418)

58,889

8.666

20,000 70,386

40,599

(395.514)

f354.915)

(222,515)

182,407

4.067

(20.0QO}

ft 5.933^

20.000

20,000

2,831

2.831

132,400

132.400

6,898
132,400

139.298

40.599

(395.514)

f354.915^

15.780

(17,430)

163.770
$ 278.469 i.

382,
402.

175
175. 1

180.603
250.989 1

889.853
667.338 1

A
; 1

.616.401

.598.971

Continued on next page
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Reconciliation of operating
income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating
activities;

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension adjustments
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Warrenton
Warrenton Marina Capital

Marina (010) Reserve (012)

$ (1,090) $

47,889
53,038

5,382
286

3,072
4,890

10,051 __

$ 123.518 $_~_

Hammond
Hammond Marina Capital

Marina (011) Reserve (013)

$ (59.406) $ - :

58,635
47,717

2,002
206

5,031
134

4.570 __

Total
Non major
Enterprise

Funds

$ (60.496)

106,524
100,755

7,384
492

8,103
5,024

14.621

$ 182.407

Schedule of noncash transactions:

Capital assets transferred between
funds (455,999)
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Operating Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Resources:

Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenue
Loan proceeds

Total resources

Requirements:
Public Works:

Persona! services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Debt service
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 2,200,000 3

3,235,000
30.000

1,500
2,500.000

$ 7,966.500 |

$ 1.004,082 ^
1.354.638

2,358,720
630,963
482,386

4.060,000

7,532,069

_A34,431

$ 7.966.500 1

> 2,200,000 ^

3,235,000
30,000

1,500
2.500,000

) 7,966.500

> 1,004,082 3
1.353.638

2,357,720
631,963
482,386

4.060.000

7,532,069

434.431

; 7.966.500 3

i 3,144.980 ;
2,855

3,990,439
42,100

8,488

_7J88,862 !

, 844,124 ;
817.102

1,661,226
630,961

_1.560,QQQ

3,852,187

3.336.675

i 7.188.862 ;

^ 944,980
2,855

755,439
12,100
6,988

(2,500.000^

S ^777.638^

? 159,958
J536.536

696,494
1,002

482,386
2.500.000

3,679,882

_f2,9Q2,244)

^ 777.638

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance - budget basis
Depredable assets, net
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Loans payable
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

$ 3.336,675
13,591,731

378,306
(64,127)
(34,000)

(996,510)
(4,046.549)

(47,0931

$ 12.118.433
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Water System Development

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund baiance
Investment earnings
Capital contributions

Total resources

Requirements:
Debt service

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Original
Budget

$ 58.000
500

30.000

88,500_

$ 58,000

30.500

$ 88,500_

Final Budget

$ 58,000 $
500

30,000.

$ 88.500 1.

$ 58,000 $
30,5QQ_

$ 88.500 ^_

Actual

91,795 ;
972

120.044

212.811

58,000 ;

154.811

212.811 :

Variance

$ 33,795
472

90.044

124.311

n24.311)

$ ^124.311^
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Water Capita! Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:

Beginning fund balance
Transfers in

Total resources

Originai
Budget

$ 2,200,000
AQ6Q.OOO

Final

$ 2,

A

Budget

200,000 ^
060.000

Act u a

i 2,267.
_1.56Q,

I

578
000

Variance

$ 67,578
(2.500.0001

$ 6,260.000 $ 6.260.000 $ 3.827.578 $ (2.432.422}

Requirements:
Public Works:

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 3,677,723 $ 3,677.723 $ 164,401 $ 3,513,322

2.582.277 _,_ 2,582,277 __3,663, 177 _[U380,9QQ)

$ 6,260.000 $ 6,260,000 ^_.._3,827,578 $^432,422
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Sewer Operating Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 2.200,000

2,388,800
40,000

4,628.800

Final

$ 2,

2,

$ 4,

Budget

200,000 ^

388,800
40,000

628.800

Actual

i 2,688,213 ;
2.883

2.837,138
47,545
16,455

5.592.234

Variance

? 488.213
2,883

448,338
7,545

16,455

963.434

Requirements:
Public Works::

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Debt service
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 1
A
2

4

,132
.569

,701
178
576
582

,038

589

,011 3
.817

,828
,322
,821
.017

,988

.812

> 1
A
2

4

,132,011 3
.569.817

,701,828
178,322
576,821
582.017

,038,988

589.812

>

1

2

^

873,473
847.642

,721,115
178.322

582.017

,481,454

.110.780

1

J2

258.538
722.175

980,713

576,821

,557,534

.520.968^

Reconciliation to GMP Basis:

Ending fund balance - budget basis
Depreciable assets, net
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Loans payable
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

3,110,780
9,032,791

360,962
(12,339)
(42,057)

(950,825)
(1.694,181)

M4.934)

103



CITY OF WARRENTON

Sewer System Development Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund baiance
Investment earnings
Capita! contributions

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

38,000 $
300

30.000

38,000
300

_30.QQO

53,188
684

_59,Q22

_112,894 $

15,188
384

_29,Q22

44,594

Requirements:

Ending fund balance

Totai requirements

68.300 1 68.300 £ 112.894 !_ (44.594}
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CiTYOFWARRENTON

Sewer Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Transfers in

Totai resources

Original
Budget

$ 3,300,000
582.017

$ 3.882.017

Final Budget

$ 3,300,000 ^
582,017

$ 3.882.017 |

Actual

i 3,533,552 :
582.017

3 4.115.569 ,

Variance

$ 233.552

£ 233.552

Requirements:
Public Works;

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

$ 1,227.020 $ 1,227.020 $ 141,443 $ 1,085,577

2.654.997 2.654.997 3.974.126 f1,319.129)

$ 3.882.017 $ 3.882.017 $ 4.115.569 $ (233.552^
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Storm Sewer Operating Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget Final Budget Actual

$ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $

428,400
5.000

428.400
5,000

1,185,198
312

505,230
9.218
1,211

Variance

85,198
312

76,830
4,218
1,211

Requirements:
Storm Sewer Department:

Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

124,903
300,825
775.133

1,200,861
85.839

1,286,700

246.700

$ 1.533.400

124.903
300,825
775.133

1,200,861
85.839

1,286.700

246.700

103,072
113,252

10.978

227,302

227,302

1.473.867

21.831
187,573
764.155

973,559
.85,839

1,059,398

(1,227,167)

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance" budget basis
Depreciable assets, net
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

,473
527
30
(4

(80
_(3

,942

,867
,124
,622
,734)
,663)
.812)

.404
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Storm System Development Charges Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Investment earnings
Capital contributions

Total resources

Requirements:

Ending fund balance

Totai requirements

Original
Budget

$ 54,900
300

18.000

$ Z3,200_

$ 73,200

$ 73.200

Final Budget

$ 54,900 $
300

18,000

$ 73.200

$ 73.200 ^

$ 73.200 3

Actual

; 57.302 ;
575

26.092

83.969 ;

S 83,969_ ;

> 83.969

Variance

^ 2,402
275

8,092

£ 10.769

$ H 0.769^

(10769)
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CITYOFWARRENTON

Sanitation Operating Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for sen/ices
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Bud9®^ Final Budget Actual

$ 450,000 $ 450,000 $

1,031,195
6.000

1,031,195
6,000

432,697
886

1.204,697
4,476
3,919

$ 1.487.195 $ 1,487,195

Variance

(17,303)
886

173,502
(1,524)
3.919

159.480

Requirements:
Public works:

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

304,619
_920,037

304,619
920.037

273,020
856.460

31,599
_63,577

1,224,656
185,263
66.845

1,476,764

10.431

$ 1.487.195

1

1

_L

,224,656
185,263
66.845

,476,764

10,431

.487.195

1

1

_L

,129,480

.66,845

.196,325

450,350

.646.675 1

95,176
185,263

280,439

{439.919^

_(159,48Q1

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance" budget basis
Depredabie assets, net
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Landfill postclosure care liability
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

450
600
122

(7
(322
(277
(15

$ 549

,350
.224
,490
,860)
,652)
,772)
.249)

.531
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Sanitation Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Transfers in

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 113,000
66.845

$ 179.845

Final Budget

$ 113,000 3
66.845

$ 179.845 3

Actual

i 198.466 ;
66.845

i 265.311 ;

Variance

$ 85,466

£ 85,466

Requirements;
Public Works:

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

20,850 $

158.995

20,850

158.995

10,820

254.491

10.030

^95.496)

Total requirements £ 179.845 $ 179.845 $ 265.311 $ ?5.466)
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CiTYOFWARRENTON

Warrenton Marina Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for sen/ices
Lease receipts
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 145.000

534,000
29,226

7,000
1.000

.716,226

Fina! Budget

$ 145.000 5

534,000
29,226
7,000
1.000

_716,226

Act u a!

i 172,727 ;
4,067

575,405
29,372

7.114
2,980

_791,665 :

Variance

$ 27.727
4,067

41,405
146
114

1.980

£ 75.439

Requirements:
Marinas:

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

312,088
226.709

312,088
226.709

308,828
196.492

3,260
30,217

538,797
100,000
20.000

658,797

57.429

716.226 £.

538,797
100,000
20,000

658,797

57.429

716,226 $

505,320

20.000

525,320

266.345

791.665 $

33,477
100,000

133,477

(208.916^

(75.439)

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance - budget basis
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciable assets, net
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

266,345
(234)

239,963
127,366
(19,668)

(335,501)
ft 5.855^
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Warrenton Marina Capital Reseive Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Transfers in

Total resources

Requirements:

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

Original
Budget

$ 382,175
20.000

$ 402,175 _

$ 402,175

Final Budget

$ 382,175 $
20.000

$ 402.175 ^

$ 402.175 1

Actual

i 382,175 ;
20.000

i 402,175_ ;

i 402,175 :

Variance

$ 402.175 $ 402.175 $ 402.175
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Hammond Marina Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources;
Beginning fund balance
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Lease receipts
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 160.000

208,500
12,901
12,000

$ 393.401

Final Budget

$ 160,000 3

208,500
12,901
12,000

$ 393.401 |

Actual

i 180,776 :
2,831

313,564
13,417
8,666
3.462

i_ 522,716

Variance

$ 20,776
2,831

105,064
516

(3,334)
_^A62

129.315

Resources:
Marinas:

Personal sen/ices
Materials and services

Total department expenditures
Contingency

Total expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

176,836
138.805

315,641
77.760

393,401

176,836
138.805

315,641
77.760

393,401

171,991 $
111.372

283,363

283,363

239,353

4,845
27.433

32,278
77.760

110,038

(239,353)

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance" budget basis
Depreciable assets, net
Deferred outfiows of resources related to pensions
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions

Ending net position - GAAP basis

239,353
1,869,620

91,866
(10.544)

(241,989)
(11,4361
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CITY OF WARRENTON

Hammond Marina Capita! Reserve Fund

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actua! (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 862.000
165,000
35.000

1.062.000

Final Budget

862,000 $
165,000
35,000

062.000

Actual

> 929,697 ;
160,903

36.257

1.126.857 :

Variance

$ 67,697
(4.097)
1,257

$ 64.857

Requirements:
Marinas:

Capital outlay

Ending fund balance

840,000 $

222.000

840,000

222,000

455,999

670.858

Total requirements

384,001

{44Q.Q5Q}

(64,857)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Sen/ice Funds are used to report activity that provides goods or services to other funds, departments, or
agencies of the primary government and its component units, or other governments, on a cost reimbursement
basis. Funds included in this category are:

Engineer ISF - The City began using an in-house engineer in 2016. The costs associated with the engineer
are accumulated in this fund and reimbursed by the appropriate departments and projects.





CITY OF WARRENTON

Engineer ISF

Schedule of Resources and Requirements
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Resources:
Beginning fund balance
Charges for services

Total resources

Original
Budget

$ 5,406
167.163

$ 172.569

Final Budget

$ 5,406 5
167.163

^__172,569 3

Actual

i 5,406 ;
4.030

i 9.436 ;

Variance

$
^63.133^

£ D63.133^

Requirements:
Engineering Department:

Personal services
Materials and services

Total department expenditures

Ending fund balance

Total requirements

165.369
7.200

172,569

165,369
7.200

172,569

3,933 $

3,933

_5,503

161.436
7,200

168,636

(5.503}

163.133

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Ending fund balance - budget basis
Compensated absences

Ending net position " GAAP basis

5,503
(2.359)

3.144
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COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES OF INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR REQUIRED BY STATE STATUE

197()<j;if<lenAve.

Ctiflt'iic, OR 9740.^

Ml.,Vi2,5l6l
Honorable Mayor and City Commission wmv.islrrqM.com
City of Warrenton, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Warrenton, Oregon ("City") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2021. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 to
162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposits of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Programs funded from outside sources.

Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets.

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City of Warrenfon,
Oregon was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows:

The notice of budget hearing was not published as required under ORS 294.
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OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
financial reporting

A deficiency in fnternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
wil! not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or materia! weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended for the information of the City Commission and the Secretary of State Division of Audits of
the State of Oregon. However, this report is a matter of public record and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these parties.

Isler CPA

f^L/< TU^.

Paul R Nielson, CPA. a member of the firm

Eugene, Oregon

December 15, 2021
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City of Warrenton

2021
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Board Communication

⚫ Auditors’ responsibilities

⚫ Significant findings

⚫ Difficulties encountered during audit

⚫ Corrected and uncorrected misstatements

⚫ Disagreements with management

⚫ Management representations

⚫ Management consultations with other auditors

⚫ Other findings and issues

ADDED



Oregon Minimum Standards

⚫ Deposits of public funds

⚫ Debt limitations

⚫ Budget testing

⚫ Insurance

⚫ Programs funded from outside sources

⚫ Highway revenues testing

⚫ Investments of public funds

⚫ Public contracting
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General Fund: Change in Fund Balance (in thousands)
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General Fund: Days in Fund Balance
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Financial Statements

⚫ MD&A page 3-14

⚫ Budget reports on pages 22-23, 60-66, 69-

71, 76-83, 100-113, and 114

⚫ Pension note starts on page 4448 and ends

on page 48
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AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
TO: The Warrenton City Commission 
FROM:  Dawne Shaw, City Recorder 
DATE: January 11, 2022 
SUBJ: Committee and Board Appointments 

SUMMARY 
Several terms on the City volunteer committees and boards ended on December 
31, 2021. Appointments to fill the position were made at the November 23, 2021 
and December 14, 2021 meetings. Attached are resolutions that will confirm the 
appointments and set the terms of office for the Budget Committee, Parks Advisory 
Board, Planning Commission, Community Library Board, and Community Center 
Board. A clerical error has been corrected on the Budget Committee term end dates 
for Positions 1, 2, and 5. 

The remaining board and committee vacancies are as follows: 
- Community Center Advisory Board, Position 2 term end 12/31/25
- Marinas Advisory Committee, Position 2 term end 12/31/23

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 2614; authorizing appointments to fill positions on 
the Warrenton Budget Committee and setting terms of office.” 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 2615; authorizing appointments to fill positions on 
the Warrenton Parks Advisory Board and setting terms of office.” 

7.B



"I move to adopt Resolution No. 2616; authorizing appointments to fill positions on

the Warrenton Planning Commission and setting terms of office."

"I move to adopt Resolution No. 2 617; authorizing appointments to fill positions on

the Warrenton Community Library Board and setting terms of office."

"f move to adopt Resolution No. 2618; setting terms of office on the Warrenton

Community Center Advisory Board."

ALTERNATIVE

Other action as deemed appropriate by the City Commission

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

Approved by City ManageFy^ ^ rx, ) C/A^_C>-^O ^^^^y

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



RESOLUTION NO. 2614

INTRODUCED BY: All Commissioners

AUTHORIZING APPOINTMENTS TO FILL POSITIONS ON
THE WARRENTON BUDGET COMMITTEE

AND SETTING TERMS OF OFFICE

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Chy Commission that the Warrenton Budget Committee Members
and their terms of office are as follows:

Position No. 1 David Burkhart Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 2 Tommy Smith Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 3 Angela Schauermann Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 4 Flint Carlson Term Ending 31, December 2024

PositionNo. 5 Dan Jackson Term Ending 31, December 2022

This Resolution sliall take effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWan'enton, Oregon, this _ day of
_,2022.

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



RESOLUTION NO. 2615

INTRODUCED BY: All Commissioners

AUTHORIZING APPOINTMENTS TO FILL POSITIONS ON
THE WARRENTON PARKS ADVISORY BOARD

AND SETTING TERMS OF OFFICE

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Commission that the Warrenton Parks Advisory Board
Members and their terms of office are as follows:

Position No. 5 Anya Schauermann Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 2 Ron Dyer Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 3 Sara May Long Term Ending 31 , December 2022

Position No. 4 Bert Little Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 5 Carol Snell Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 6 Michelle Murray Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 7 Brooke Terry Term Ending 31, December 2023

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon, this _ day of
,2022.

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



RESOLUTION NO. 2616

INTRODUCED BY: All Commissioners

AUTHORIZING APPOINTMENTS TO FILL POSITIONS ON
THE WARRENTON PLANNING COMMISSION

AND SETTING TERMS OF OFFICE

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Commission that the Warrenton Planning Commission
Members and their terms of office are as follows:

Position No. 1 Kevin Swanson Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 2 Christine Bridgens Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 3 Chris Hayward Term Ending 31, December 2025

Position No. 4 Michael Moha Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 5 Ken Yuill Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 6 Paul Mitchell Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 7 Lylla Gaebel Term Ending 31, December 2023

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon, this _ day of
,2022.

APPROVED:

Hem'y A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



RESOLUTION NO. 2617

INTRODUCED BY: All Commissioners

AUTHORIZING APPOINTMENTS TO FILL POSITIONS ON
THE WARRENTON COMMUNITY LIBRARY BOARD

AND SETTING TERMS OF OFFICE

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Commission that the Wan-enton Community Library Board
Members and their terms of office are as follows:

Position No. 1 Kelsey Balensifer Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 2 Joy Wheatley-Decius Term Ending 31, December 2023

Position No. 3 Natalie Duggan Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 4 Eileen Purcell Tenn Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 5 Karyn Grass Term Ending 31, December 2025

Position No. 6 Amanda Donovan Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 7 DawnDelacey Term Ending 31, December 2022

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon, this _ day of
,2022.

APPROVED:

Hemy A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



RESOLUTION NO. 2618

INTRODUCED BY: All Commissioners

SETTING TERMS OF OFFICE ON
THE WARRENTON COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY BOARD

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Commission that the Warrenton Community Center Advisory
Board Members and their terms of office are as follows:

Position No. 1 Kenneth Gulp Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 2 Vacant Term Ending 31, December 2025

Position No. 3 Carol Snell Term Ending 31, December 2022

Position No. 4 Debbie Little Term Ending 31, December 2024

Position No. 5 Penny Morris Term Ending 31, December 2023

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon, this _ day of
,2022.

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



ADDED 8.A

Rstelzig
Text Box
Tongue Point Tide Elevation = 12.71' (NAVDD) @ 12:54 on January 3, 2022
NGVD Elevation = 12.71' - 3.32' = 9.39' (NGVD 29)
.
Possibly a 700-yr Return Period Event???


Rstelzig
Line

Rstelzig
Line

Rstelzig
Callout
about 9.39' (NGVD 29)

Rstelzig
Callout
700-yr Return Period

Rstelzig
Text Box
Tides Leading up January 6th
Dec 30 -  10.65' 
Dec 31 -  10.47' 
Jan 1   -  10.41'
Jan 2   -  11.72'
Jan 3   -  10.11', 12.71'
Jan 4   -  9.98', 11.41'
Jan 5   - 10.45'
Jan 6  -  9.89', 10.68'




ADDED

Rstelzig
Text Box
*Initial Aldercreek Elevation on January 6, 2022 = 7.4'(NAVD)
.
7.4'(NAVD) = 7.4'-3.32' (NGVD) = 4.08' (NGVD)
.
This would be Equivalent to a 200-300 year return period water elevation
.
Elevations may have been as high as 8.0'(NAVD) = 4.68' (NGVD)

Rstelzig
Text Box
DRAFT

Rstelzig
Text Box
Rainfall Return Period
.
24-hrs = 4.6"   -  This is about a 20-yr return Storm
.
.
.
48-hrs = 5.53", 6.64", 11"    -  This may be a 10-yr, 50-yr, 100+ -yr Storm Event



RECOMMENDATIONS
1. STORMWATER REPORT FOR EVERY DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING RESIDENTIAL)
2. REQUIRE DOWNSTREAM ANALYSIS FOR EACH DEVELOPMENT (1/4 MILE)

a) DOWNSTREAM IMPROVEMENTS WILL LIKELY BE REQUIRED
b) DEVELOPER WILL LIKELY INCREASE DITCH AND CULVERT CAPACITY

3. REQUIRE FLOOD STORAGE CALCULATION WHERE NECESSARY
4. CITY CONSTRUCTED FLOOD AND STORMWATER STORAGE PROJECTS (WETLAND

MITIGATION)
5. INCREASE CAPACITY OF STORMWATER PUMP STATIONS (NEW: ALDER CREEK,

ENTERPRISE, HAMMOND)
6. UPDATE INTERNAL FLOODING STUDIES (LAST ONE 1976, INACCURATE)
7. FINANCE

a) IMPROVEMENTS ARE NEEDED BEFORE SOME DEVELOPMENTS CONTINUE
b) NEED TO FIND SOURCES TO FINANCE PROJECTS.

ADDED

Rstelzig
Text Box
Recommendations from 01 27 1999


Rstelzig
Text Box
Ongoing

Rstelzig
Line

Rstelzig
Text Box
One Large Development



RECOMMENDATIONS
8. STORMWATER PUMP STATIONS
9. LARGER DITCHES AND STORAGE AREAS
10. REQUIRE STORMWATER REPORTS FOR ALL DEVELOPMENTS

ADDED
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